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Board of Directors
of EP Manufacturing
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Executive Chairman
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Chairman’s
Statement
Economic Overview
2020 has been a historical marker for the world. The global
outbreak of coronavirus (COVID-19) severely affected human
society and augmented our economic and social realities.
A global medical emergency emerged, and countries began
shutting down their borders and limiting their economies to
contain the outbreak of the disease and safeguard public health.
Domestically, the seriousness of the pandemic resulted in the
Malaysian Government restricting social and economic life to
contain the virus outbreak. On 18 March 2020, the Movement
Control Order was implemented, shutting down general business
operations for 2 months. This significant event kick-started
a cycle of high-level government regulations to allow the
Government to contain the pandemic risk, as it concurrently
waited and searched for vaccine development and availability.
The combination of the global outbreak of coronavirus and the
subsequent government regulatory actions affected macro
demand, dampened economic flows, affected population
movement and ultimately market sentiment.
Being mindful of the effects of pandemic regulations and state of
the economy, the Government introduced stimulus measures to
shore up the economy through loan moratoriums and lowering
interest rates to a historic low. Specifically, for the automotive
sector, sales tax exemptions were introduced on locally
assembled, completely knocked down (“CKD”) and completely
built up (“CBU”) cars to stimulate automotive demand. The
results of the price reductions and favorable interest rates have
heavily benefited local car sales in the third and fourth quarters of
the year. Resulting in tipping our sales portfolios weight towards
the national makers against the non-nationals. However, the net
result for FY2020 was an aggregated fall in total demand, which
is also concurred by our export market.
In response to complying with the Government’s pandemic
regulations and the downward business environment, the Group
enacted a measured and conservative policy that was mindful
of balancing operational responses to the pandemic crisis with
an eye for the future opportunities post pandemic.
Despite the unprecedented challenge, it was business as usual
for us. Our 2020 plan was to deliver us to greener pastures.
The pandemic has altered the timing, not the ultimate goal.
This year we have taken the opportunity to further the agenda
by targeting our soft capabilities, debts and financial costs for
long term benefits.

We have taken the opportunity to engage our financiers,
customers and other stakeholders for the best of outcomes.
Tactically, we scrutinised our costs and tapered our resources to
the current state of demand. Strategically, we continue onwards
with our journey to incorporate more technology into our
processes, trim our borrowings, rightsize capital expenditures,
and deliver the best products & services to our customers. Our
near-term goal is to be in the best shape for the post pandemic
economic recovery.
Financial Performance
Our FY2020 results recorded a lower revenue of RM408.9mil
from RM484.7mil in 2019, a 15.6% reduction. This resulted
in a loss of RM14.9mil. This loss is lower than 2019 where a
loss of RM15.3mil was recorded. This shows despite revenue
dropping significantly our rebalancing efforts have resulted in a
reduction to losses experienced. Highlighting, sustainable and
foundational improvements in the business model.
The pandemic is expected to continue to weight performance
for FY2021 as we navigate a path to post pandemic recovery.
Operating conditions are expected to be difficult due to the fluid
business environment that will be associated with government
mandated health policies, its targeted localised responses to
COVID-19 containment by the Government and the state of the
global supply chain. Furthermore, we believe our customers
have the right model mix for the upcoming market.
We believe our business is equipped to meet the unprecedented
challenge of this medical emergency. The Group will continue
being actively prudent with its operating and financial allocations
as Malaysia moves towards recovery. We believe the automotive
sector will overcome the pandemic, and remain resilient and
robust for the long term. Thereby, justifying continued investment
and commitment.
Acknowledgements
On behalf of my fellow Board members, I wish to thank our
shareholders, customers, financiers and various stakeholders
for their continuing support.
Last but not least, my appreciation also goes out to my fellow
Board members, management and staff for their unwavering
support, commitment and dedication to the Group in this most
trying of times.
HAMIDON BIN ABDULLAH
Executive Chairman
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Management
Discussion And Analysis

OBJECTIVE
The objective of
the Management
Discussion & Analysis
(“MD&A”) is to provide
our shareholders with
a better understanding
of the business,
operations and financial
position of EPMB Group
of Companies.

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF
BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS

EPMB

GROUP’S

Corporate Structure

[Registration No. 199601017765 (390116-T)]
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EPMB was listed on 11 March 1997 with its core business in manufacturing and supply of metal body panels, chassis parts
and modular assembly to Original Equipment Manufacturers (“OEMs”), and we have grown our customer base to include
Perodua, Proton, Honda, Mazda and Toyota as our main customers.
We have technologically progressed a notch higher in 2000 to 2012 with the establishment of technical assistance and
collaboration with Robert Bosch GmbH for the development and supply of modular products such as Corner Modules, Intake
Air Fuel Modules (“IAFM”), Braking System, Fuel Rail Assembly and Fuel Tank Modules for our customers. These collaborations
further increased our technical capability and manufacturing efficiency, which has contributed to the development of other
modular series with more complex body panels, chassis parts and modular assembly. Our core competency is in the
manufacturing of complex and safety critical modules.
We have also excelled in manufacturing chassis assemblies and inner body panels through our collaboration with two well
established Japanese Tier-1 suppliers namely Y-tec Corporation and Keylex Corporation. These collaborations have provided
us with the latest production line technology with automation and less manpower. The technical expertise gained from these
collaborations are applied across the Group to ensure continuity in supplying quality products to our customers.
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Management Discussion And Analysis
(Cont’d)
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Management Discussion And Analysis
(Cont’d)

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW
Revenue

:

The Group recorded lower revenue of RM408.9mil for the financial year ended 31 December 2020,
a 15.6% drop as compared to RM484.7mil in the previous financial year. The decrease in revenue
of the Group was mainly due to the Movement Control Order (“MCO”) that was imposed by the
Government on 18 March 2020 to curb the spike in COVID-19 infections in the country. The Group
had lost almost two months of revenue as the automotive industry was not allowed to operate
during the MCO. On 5 June 2020, the Government has unveiled a 100% sales tax exemption
on completely knocked down (“CKD”) models or locally assembled cars and 50% exemption
for completely built up (“CBU”) models or imported cars from 15 June until 31 December 2020
to boost the automotive sector. The sales tax exemption had boosted the demand for new cars
in the market and the Group recorded higher revenue in the second half of the year by 77.1% as
compared to the first half of the year. On 29 December 2020, the Government has extended the
sales tax exemption for another six months until 30 June 2021 to continue to drive the momentum
in the development of the automotive sector in the country.
The Group’s sales for national car segment have increased by 17.0% from last year as Perodua
and Proton have continued to outshine the non-national car segment. Sales for non-national car
segment have dropped by 56.9% and exports to Saudi Arabia have also decreased by 35.0%
from 2019.

Loss before
interest and
taxes

:

For the financial year 2020, the Group reported loss before interest and taxes of RM4.2mil as
compared to profit before interest and taxes of RM1.3mil in 2019. The loss was mainly due to no
revenue generated during the MCO and the Group continued to bear fixed production overheads
and administrative expenses such as depreciation, staff and labour costs as well as factory rentals.

Finance costs

:

Finance costs have reduced by RM4.4mil to RM9.4mil in 2020 from RM13.8mil in 2019 mainly
due to reduction in loans and borrowings by RM38.6mil, lower interest rates and loan moratorium.

Loss attributable
to owners of the
Company

:

2020 was another challenging year. The Covid-19 pandemic and various stages of the MCO
in the country have affected the financial performance of the Group. The Group recorded loss
attributable to owners of the Company of RM15.2mil as compared to RM15.3mil in 2019.

Assets

:

The Group was vigilant in capital expenditure spending in 2020. Capital expenditures incurred for
the year was RM9.4mil, lower by RM6.4mil when compared to RM15.8mil in 2019. The capital
expenditures spent were mainly for the development of moulds and dies and assembly lines in
relation to the introduction of new models by Honda and Perodua.
The Group closed the year with RM29.7mil in cash and cash equivalents, an increase of RM5.3mil
from RM24.4mil in the previous financial year. The Group continued to improve operational efficiency
and undertook cost cutting measures to conserve cash flows. Banks and financial institutions have
facilitated the Group’s request for a moratorium of up to six months for bankers’ acceptances and
term loans which were due during the MCO to allow reasonable time for the business to recover
from the disruptions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic and shut down of operations.

Borrowings and
gearing ratio

6

:

Borrowings of the Group have reduced by RM38.6mil to RM182.5mil as at 31 December 2020
from RM221.1mil as at 31 December 2019. Bankers’ acceptances and term loans have decreased
by RM32.2mil and RM6.6mil respectively due to lower utilisation of bankers’ acceptances and
repayment of term loans. The Group’s gearing ratio has improved to 0.74 times from 0.84 times as
at 31 December 2019. The gearing ratio is calculated based on total borrowings divided by total
equity attributable to owners of the Company. As at 31 December 2020, the total borrowings of the
Group were RM182.5mil and total equity attributable to owners of the Company was RM247.5mil.
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Management Discussion And Analysis
(Cont’d)

EPMB Plant in Alor Gajah, Melaka for Honda Malaysia
The Covid-19 pandemic brought on unprecedented havoc
to the economy, and the automotive industry was not spared.
The non-national car segment was hit especially hard and
2020 was an extremely challenging year at our Melaka
plants, having delivered a total of 42,215 car sets compared
against the 86,814 car sets that we delivered in 2019. This
is a 51.4% decline in volume from 2019. Honda maintained
its position as no.1 in the non-national segment for the sixth
consecutive year. Actions taken to mitigate the lower volume
included optimisation of the manpower requirement, efficient
material ordering and lean production.

In September 2020, we commenced mass production
of parts for the new fifth generation Honda City model at
the new plant and warehouse in Pegoh. New and efficient
assembly lines with built-in quality concept for the future new
models will be installed in this plant.

EPMB Plant in Sungai Petani, Kedah for Mazda Malaysia
EPMB plant in Kedah experienced lower sales volume in 2020. A total of 9,260 car sets were delivered in 2020 compared
to 18,048 car sets in 2019. This drastic contraction of 48.7% in 2020 was primarily due to the pandemic and movement
restrictions, which also affected the export market for the new models which were launched in late 2019.
Actions taken to mitigate the effects of the volume decline include control of material ordering to a minimum level and
combined shipment, control of overtime, kaizen and value-added value engineering (“VAVE”) activities.
Peps-JV (Kedah) Sdn. Bhd. utilises the monozukuri (compact and commonise) concept of advanced manufacturing from our
Technical Assistance (“TA”) partner, Y-tec Corporation. The operations are efficient and able to run multiple models within one
assembly line. Due to the flexible manufacturing concept, only modifications and changes of assembly jigs were required to
accommodate the new models into the existing assembly lines.

Annual Report 2020

7

Management Discussion And Analysis
(Cont’d)

EPMB Plant in Batang Kali, Selangor for Proton and Perodua
Proton sold 108,524 units in 2020 which was an impressive 8.3% jump
from the 100,183 units in 2019 despite the pandemic. The main drivers of
growth were the Persona, Iriz, Exora and Saga (PIES models) which were
extensively updated in 2019 and the X70. These models continued their
sales growth in 2020. The new compact Sport Utliity Vehicle (“SUV”) X50
which was launch in October 2020 was also well received.
Perodua continued to have another strong year eventhough it sold
220,163 units in 2020 as compared against 240,341 units the previous
year, Perodua increased its market share of Total Industry Volume (“TIV”)
from 39.8% in 2019 to 41.6% in 2020. Perodua maintained its position as
the largest automotive manufacturer in Malaysia for the 15th successive
year. The plant was also busy with preparations for the new compact
SUV model launch which was expected in early 2021.
We have commenced development for our first inner body panel
localisation project for Toyota. Our operations are able to cater to the
high volume requirement from Perodua, Proton and the new Toyota
project without the need for additional infrastructure investment.
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Management Discussion And Analysis
(Cont’d)

EPMB Plant in Shah Alam, Selangor
The manufacturing plants for EP Polymers (M)
Sdn. Bhd. (“EP Polymers”) and Fundwin Sdn.
Bhd. (“Fundwin”) are located in Hicom-Glenmarie,
Shah Alam. EP Polymers specialises in engineering
plastics parts like Intake Air Fuel Modules and
Fuel Rail Assemblies, whereas Fundwin supplies
car lamps, side steps and other made-to-design
accessories products to our customers mainly in
Saudi Arabia. In 2020, EP Polymers was awarded
the letter of award for the new Air Intake Manifold
project for Proton.

Export Market to the Middle East
Our main customer in the Middle East is Abdul Latif Jameel Import & Distribution Co. Ltd, a subsidiary of Abdul Latif Jameel
Motors (“ALJ”). ALJ has a joint venture with Toyota Motor Corporation, and Fundwin will continue to support the business
opportunities that may arise from their joint venture with Toyota. The emphasis is for the introduction of small segment cars
and future models which are already in the pipeline. Fundwin welcomes the opportunity to introduce the interior and exterior
accessories for these new models. Currently, we are developing a product for the YM21 Camry model.
Fundwin has also been supplying accessories to Toyota Accessories Conversion Service (“J-TACS”) for the Land Cruiser 200
via ALJ Motors and is developing a product for the YM21 Land Cruiser. J-TACS was created as a separate company from
the Toyota Motor Corporation so that it could offer customers an efficient and flexible way for overseas customers to obtain
accessory-equipped vehicles or conversion vehicles, such as ambulances, while maintaining Toyota quality.

Annual Report 2020
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Management Discussion And Analysis
(Cont’d)

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
We continuously strive to exceed our customers’ expectation, enhance the trust and confidence of our stakeholders,
strengthen the business financial stability and maximise stakeholders’ returns.
We position EPMB as a trusted and established automotive parts manufacturer player with advance technology, quality parts,
excellent services and financial strength to undertake major projects, with the aim to increase revenue in line with projected
market growth.
We will leverage on our relationship with Y-tec, Keylex and Korean technical partner to further improve our skills and knowledge
based on the latest methodologies and technology.
We seek to inculcate a thriving Kaizen (continuous improvement) culture across the organisation with emphasis on lean
manufacturing and quality improvement as well as to continually learn and adopt best practices.
We aim to achieve a stable long term business revenue that is resilient to unforeseen hiccups, through further diversification
of the sales contribution between the Original Equipment Manufacturers (“OEMs”) and nurturing of alternative supply chains.

STRATEGIC DIRECTION
1.

Improvement of human resource and skills development by working with organisations like Malaysia Automotive Robotics
& IoT Institute (“MARii”) and Malaysia Japan Automotive Industries Cooperation (“MAJAICO”), to continuously train and
develop competent staff with multitasking skill sets.

2.

Introduce good manufacturing practices, innovations and production methodologies from our technical and Joint Venture
(“JV”) partners through the support from our customers.

3.

Enhance the lean manufacturing method and cost structures with reduced dependence on manpower through automation.

4.

Maintain cost competitiveness through the resource of alternative materials and suppliers, internal cost conscious
mindset, monitoring of cost reduction programmes and promotion continuous value-added value engineering (“VAVE”)
in tooling, machinery, equipment and process.

5.

Keep abreast of related new technology through collaboration with JV/TA partners, trade shows, conferences and product
demonstrations.

6.

Group wide adoption of customer technology improvement programmes, e.g. SSC (Slim, Simple and Compact), QCD
(Quality, Cost and Delivery) and multi models Assembly Line.
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Management Discussion And Analysis
(Cont’d)

MITIGATING RISKS
Maintaining competitiveness
We are committed to our shareholders in ensuring continued business competitiveness in the automotive components
industry. We have identified our key performance indexes (“KPI”) which are required in order to maintain our competitiveness.
The KPIs include:
1.

Improving manufacturing efficiencies through efficient manpower planning and control, including adherence to Total
Productive Maintenance (“TPM”).

2.

Working with customers and suppliers on value-added value engineering (“VAVE”) activities for cost reduction.

3.

Improving quality standards through inculcation of a thriving Kaizen culture across the organisation.

4.

Introducing new technologies and methods including Industry 4.0 through technical collaborations.

5.

Competitive sourcing of tooling, equipment and components for cost efficiency.

6.

Improving design and process engineering.

PROSPECTS
The Malaysian Automotive Association (“MAA”) has taken into account several factors in forecasting the Total Industry Volume
(“TIV”) for 2021. Amongst them are:
•

Recovery in the global as well as in the Malaysian economy.

•

Continuation of the sales tax exemption incentive for passenger vehicles under PENJANA package till 30 June 2021.

•

Lower hire purchase loan interest rates will assist to spur automotive sales.

•

Introduction of new models with the latest additional specifications, designs and at very competitive prices can assist
to sustain buying interest.

•

Continuation of aggressive promotional campaigns by car companies to push sales and maintain market share.

•

Many economic stimulus packages initiated by the Government.

In view of above, MAA forecasted that the local automotive market will rebound in 2021.
MAA’s forecast for the industry in 2021 is as follows:
Market Segment
Passenger Vehicles
Commercial Vehicles
Total Vehicles

2021 (Forecast)

2020 (Actual)

Variance (Units)

Variance (%)

513,000

480,965

32,035

7%

57,000

48,469

8,531

18%

570,000

529,434

40,566

8%
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Management Discussion And Analysis
(Cont’d)

For the next four years, indicative TIV forecasts for 2022 until 2025 are as follows:
Year
Passenger Vehicles
Commercial Vehicles
Total Vehicles
Growth Rate

2022

2023

2024

2025

543,780

560,070

577,440

595,890

60,420

62,230

64,160

66,210

604,200

622,300

641,600

662,100

6.0%

3.0%

3.1%

3.2%

Proton had introduced another well received SUV from the Geely stable in 2020. In the future, Proton will probably introduce
other new models including the Multi-purpose Vehicles (“MPV”) and sedan models developed from Geely and we will take this
opportunity to participate in the development of parts for these models as well as the facelifts of existing models to sustain
our revenue growth goals.
Perodua with the cooperation of Daihatsu and its close ties with Toyota, are developing future models on common platforms.
This will reduce the development lead-time and costs for introducing new models. EPMB has been supplying parts to Perodua
since the first Kancil model, and with the experience and know-how within our Group and the expertise of our TA partners, we
look forward to enhancing our business with Perodua and Toyota.
With the experience gained from working with our strategic JV partner, Y-tec Corporation, we will continue to participate in
Mazda’s future model localisation programmes for future models.
Our new manufacturing plant in Alor Gajah has commenced operations, and we are currently commissioning the assembly
lines for another 3 future models at the plant. The new plant which has a larger floor area than our current plant, will allow us
to plan and optimise the space for a more efficient production layout. The close proximity to the Honda manufacturing plant
permits us to implement the Just-In-Time (“JIT”) concept and provide a more efficient delivery service to Honda.
With the rollout of the vaccine, the economic outlook is brighter and we remain positive and confident about the future of our
business as we continue to be lean and to leverage our strengths to reap the benefits of the expected gradual upswing in the
industry in the coming years.
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5-Year Group
Financial Highlights
		
		
		

31.12.2016
RM’000

Revenue

435,523

472,241

472,602

484,650

408,867

300

(3,889)

8,723

1,253

(4,237)

73,013

61,727

68,994

52,745

35,100

Loss before tax

(13,393)

(16,923)

(5,879)

(12,246)

(13,367)

Loss after tax

(17,298)

(29,944)

(11,895)

(15,274)

(14,904)

Net loss attributable to Owners
of the Company

(17,315)

(29,942)

(11,895)

(15,274)

(15,156)

Total assets

698,812

699,061

617,747

585,470

536,069

Total borrowings

280,795

276,989

246,497

221,102

182,533

Shareholders’ equity

319,591

290,553

278,188

262,816

247,548

Gearing ratio (times)

0.88

0.95

0.89

0.84

0.74

(10.88)

(18.83)

(7.49)

(9.64)

(9.58)

2.00

1.82

1.75

1.66

1.56

(4.60)

(2.66)

(6.14)

(3.42)

(3.44)

0.50

0.50

0.46

0.33

0.33

EBIT/(LBIT) (Earnings/(Loss) Before Interest and Taxes)
EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Taxes,
Depreciation and Amortisation)

Basic loss per share (sen)
Net asset per share (RM)
Price earning (PE) ratio
Share price as at the financial year end (RM)

YEAR ENDED
31.12.2017 31.12.2018 31.12.2019
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

31.12.2020
RM’000
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5-Year Group Financial Highlights
(Cont’d)

REVENUE (RM’000)

2016

435,523

2017

472,241

2018

472,602

2019

484,650

2020

408,867

negative

positive

EBIT/(LBIT) (RM’000)

2016
(3,889)

(4,237)

300

2017
2018

8,723

2019

1,253

2020

positive

negative
LOSS AFTER TAX (RM’000)
(17,298)

2016

(29,944)

2017

(11,895)

2018

(15,274)

2019

(14,904)

2020

negative

positive

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (RM’000)

2016

319,591

2017

290,553

2018

278,188

2019

262,816

2020

247,548

negative

positive

BASIC LOSS PER SHARE (sen)
(10.88)

2016

(18.83)

2017

(7.49)

2018

(9.64)

2019

(9.58)

2020

negative
NET ASSET PER SHARE (RM)

positive
2016

2.00

2017

1.82

2018

1.75

2019

1.66

2020

1.56

negative
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Our
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Directors’
Profile
Encik Hamidon bin Abdullah is the Executive Chairman and major shareholder
of the Company. He was appointed to the Board of EPMB on 20 January 1997.
Encik Hamidon is the founder of EPMB Group and has been the driving force
in developing the Group as one of the Tier-1 automotive component vendor in
Malaysia.
Encik Hamidon obtained his Bachelor’s Degree in Applied Mathematics &
Computer Science in 1974 and a Master’s Degree in Urban Planning in 1975 from
the University of Adelaide, Australia. Upon graduation in 1975, he started his
career as a System Analyst with the South Australia Highway Department. After
4 years, he was engaged as an Urban Planning Consultant with P.G. PakPoys &
Associates (KL). In 1983, he joined an architect firm, Hijjas Kasturi & Associates.
He is also the Executive Chairman of Nadayu Properties Berhad.

HAMIDON BIN ABDULLAH
Aged 68, Malaysian, Male
Executive Chairman (Non-Independent)

His spouse, Dr Linden Hamidon and two sons, Johan bin Hamidon and Aidan
Hamidon, are also Directors and shareholder of the Company.
He attended all five Board Meetings of the Company held during the financial year
ended 31 December 2020.

Encik Zulkefly bin Baharuddin was appointed to the Board of EPMB on 1 April
2016. He had his tertiary education at University of Technology Malaysia with a
Bachelor of Mechanical (Aeronautical) Engineering.
He has a total of 29 years of experience in the automotive industry and his career
spans over several established and international companies such as Ford Malaysia
Sdn. Bhd., Delloyd Industries (M) Sdn. Bhd., Delphi Automotive Systems (M) Sdn.
Bhd. and Autoliv Hirotako Sdn. Bhd..
Encik Zulkefly joined EPMB Group in 2002 as a Senior Manager in Business and
Development and was later promoted to Director in 2004. He was instrumental
for the development of Intake Air Fuel Module and Engine Management System
together with the collaboration of Robert Bosch GmbH as Technical Assistance
(“TA”) partner.

ZULKEFLY BIN
BAHARUDDIN
Aged 53, Malaysian, Male
Deputy Executive Chairman
(Non-Independent)

He also led the development of metal stamping and modular assembly products
and introduced new foreign partners from Japan, Keylex Corporation and Y-tec
Corporation, who are Tier-1 vendors to Mazda. Being TA and Joint Venture
partners, they brought in technology advancement and quality enhancement.
These initiatives brought in further business from non-national car makers, Mazda,
Honda and Toyota.
Encik Zulkefly was promoted to Deputy Executive Chairman of EPMB in 2016 and
oversees a wider spectrum of the Group’s overall businesses and manufacturing
operations to continuously lead EPMB to greater and successful heights.
He attended all five Board Meetings of the Company held during the financial year
ended 31 December 2020.

18

EP MANUFACTURING BHD [Registration No. 199601017765 (390116-T )]

Directors’ Profile
(Cont’d)

Encik Johan bin Hamidon was appointed to the Board of EPMB on 28 August
2012. He obtained his Bachelor of Arts Degree from Murdoch University, Perth
Australia in 2002 and completed his Masters in Business Administration from La
Trobe University, Melbourne Australia in 2018.
Encik Johan has extensive experience in the automotive business, having held
incumbencies in business development, manufacturing operations and supply
distribution.
His parents, Hamidon bin Abdullah and Dr Linden Hamidon and brother, Aidan
Hamidon are also Directors and major shareholders of the Company.
He attended all five Board Meetings of the Company held during the financial year
ended 31 December 2020.

JOHAN BIN HAMIDON
Aged 42, Malaysian, Male
Executive Director (Non-Independent)

Encik Aidan Hamidon was appointed to the Board of EPMB on 28 August
2012. He graduated from the University of Melbourne in 2004 with a Bachelor of
Commerce Degree majoring in Actuarial Studies. Encik Aidan brings a combination
of experience from the Australian banking industry as well as the Malaysian
property industry to the Group.
Encik Aidan started his career in National Australia Bank having exposure ranging
from market settlements, asset management, and performance and risk reporting.
Major clients serviced included active fund managers, institutional superannuation
and Australian state government funds.
Encik Aidan also has 9 years of experience in the Malaysian property development
industry, with exposure to financing, product development, market & sales
strategies and overall strategic direction.

AIDAN HAMIDON
Aged 38, Malaysian, Male
Executive Director (Non-Independent)

Since joining EPMB, Encik Aidan has played key roles in the strategic outlook of the
Group and developing the Group’s business, along with exposures to operations,
business development, project management and group financing.
He also sits on the board of Nadayu Properties Berhad.
His parents, Hamidon bin Abdullah and Dr Linden Hamidon and brother, Johan bin
Hamidon are also Directors and major shareholders of the Company.
He attended all five Board Meetings of the Company held during the financial year
ended 31 December 2020.
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Directors’ Profile
(Cont’d)

Dr Linden Hamidon was appointed to the Board of EPMB on 20 January 1997.
She holds a Bachelor of Dentistry Degree from the University of Adelaide, Australia
and has been a practicing Dentist since 1979.
Her spouse, Hamidon bin Abdullah and two sons, Johan bin Hamidon and Aidan
Hamidon, are also Directors and major shareholder of the Company.
She attended all five Board Meetings of the Company held during the financial year
ended 31 December 2020.

DR LINDEN HAMIDON
Aged 68, Australian/Malaysian PR,
Female
(Non-Independent Non-Executive
Director)

Encik Shaari bin Haron was appointed to the Board of EPMB on 20 January
1997. He obtained his Bachelor of Law (Honours) Degree from the International
Islamic University in 1991. He was admitted to the Bar in May 1993 and thereafter
commenced his law practice in Kuala Lumpur. He has been in legal practice for 27
years and is currently a consultant at Messrs Abu Bakar & Yong.
Encik Shaari is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee.
He attended four Board Meetings of the Company held during the financial year
ended 31 December 2020.

SHAARI BIN HARON
Aged 70, Malaysian, Male
(Independent Non-Executive Director)
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Tan Sri Datuk Hussin bin Haji Ismail was appointed to the Board of EPMB
on 27 April 2015. Tan Sri holds a Diploma in Police Science from Universiti
Kebangsaan Malaysia and a Master’s Degree of Occupational Safety and Health
Risk Management from Open University Malaysia.
Tan Sri Datuk Hussin is a former Deputy Inspector General of Police in Royal
Malaysian Police (“RMP”). His excellent achievements are attributed to 39 years of
working experience in various senior positions in RMP. The exposure of managing
at various levels in RMP are added values to extensive policing knowledge and
skills which have further enhanced personal capabilities and credibility in managing
the force in the higher position. Tan Sri Hussin is also the Deputy Chairman of a
Non Governmental Organisation (“NGO”), Yayasan Pengaman Malaysia.
Tan Sri Datuk Hussin also sits on the board of JAKS Resources Berhad as
independent director.

TAN SRI DATUK HUSSIN
BIN HAJI ISMAIL
Aged 68, Malaysian, Male
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Tan Sri Datuk Hussin is also a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee.
He attended all five Board Meetings of the Company held during the financial year
ended 31 December 2020.

Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz bin Hashim was appointed to the Board of EPMB on 5 May
2009. He holds an M.Phil in Land Management from University of Reading, UK and
Bachelor of Arts (Honours) from University of Malaya.
Dato’ Ikmal began his career in the Administrative and Diplomatic Service of the
Government of Malaysia in 1976. In 1991, he left the government services and
joined United Engineers (Malaysia) Berhad as General Manager of MalaysiaSingapore Second Crossing project.
In 1993, he became the Chief Operating Officer of Projek Lebuhraya Utara-Selatan
Berhad (“PLUS”) and in 1995 he was promoted as the company’s Managing Director.
In 1999, he then was appointed as the Managing Director of Prolink Development
Sdn. Bhd. (“Prolink”) and concurrently assumed the position of President for the
Property Division of the Group. He was subsequently appointed as Managing
Director of Renong Berhad from 2002 until 2003.

DATO’ IKMAL HIJAZ BIN
HASHIM
Aged 68, Malaysian, Male
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

In November 2003, Dato’ Ikmal was seconded to Pos Malaysia Berhad as the
Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director as well as the Group Managing Director
of Pos Malaysia and Services Holdings Berhad. Then in November 2007, he was
appointed as Chief Executive of Iskandar Regional Development Authority (“IRDA”)
until February 2009. He then became the Chairman of Faber Group Berhad from
1 March 2009 until June 2014. During the said period he was also appointed as
Independent Non-Executive Director of UEM Land Berhad.
Currently, Dato’ Ikmal also sits on the board of Kumpulan Perangsang Selangor
Berhad as independent director.
Dato’ Ikmal is also a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee.
He attended all five Board Meetings of the Company held during the financial year
ended 31 December 2020.
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Mr. Hew Voon Foo was appointed to the Board of EPMB on 17 April 2002 as a
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director. He was re-designated as Independent
Non-Executive Director on 26 April 2013. He is a Fellow member of the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants (“CIMA”) and the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (“MIA”).
Mr. Hew has extensive experience in financial management gained over the years
in an audit firm and as a financial controller in a local manufacturing company.
Currently, he also serves on the board of Genetec Technology Berhad.
He is also a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee.
He attended all five Board Meetings of the Company held during the financial year
ended 31 December 2020.

HEW VOON FOO
Aged 60, Malaysian, Male
(Independent Non-Executive Director)

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors have:1.
2.
3.
4.
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any family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder of the Company;
any conflict of interest with the Company;
any convictions for offences within the past five years other than traffic offences; and
any public sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year.
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Management Team
Profile
Ms. Ong Tsuey Yun is the Director of Finance & Special Project. She has been with
the Company since 1991 and was appointed to her current position in 2007. Apart
from her leadership role in Finance, she has been responsible for the strategic and
tactical matters of EPMB. She also serves as Director in several subsidiaries of
EPMB.
Prior to joining EPMB, she was with ChungHwa Picture Tubes (Malaysia) Sdn.
Bhd., where she was involved in the starting up of new plants, implementing
costing, managing inventory, working with management information systems and
financial planning.
Ms. Ong graduated from University Malaya in 1989 with a Bachelor’s Degree in
Accounting (Honours).

ONG TSUEY YUN
Aged 55, Malaysian, Female
Director of Finance & Special Project

Encik Mohd Nizam bin Mohamed is Director of Manufacturing of the EPMB
Group. He has been with the Group since 1991 and was appointed to his current
position in 2007.
Encik Nizam graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering
from Lamar University, Texas, USA in 1990.
As Director of Manufacturing, Encik Nizam’s range of responsibilities involve
leading management teams in the areas of manufacturing, purchasing, human
resource & administration, quality management, customer liaison and engineering.
His prior experience includes Operations Manager/Production Engineer in Pesaka
Nuri (M) Sdn. Bhd. from 1994 to 1997, Production Engineer in EP Polymers (M)
Sdn. Bhd. from 1992 to 1993 and Production Engineer in KB Teknik Sdn. Bhd.
from 1991 to 1992.

MOHD NIZAM BIN
MOHAMED
Aged 53, Malaysian, Male
Director of Manufacturing

Save as disclosed, none of the Key Senior Management have:1. any directorship in public companies and the Company;
2. any family relationship with any directors and/or major shareholders of the Company;
3. any conflict of interest with the Company;
4. any conviction for offences within the past five years other than traffic offences; and
5. any public sanction or penalty imposed by the relevant regulatory bodies during the financial year.
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Sustainability
Statement
SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT

Our strategic
direction
towards
business
sustainability
and success

We are pleased to present EP Manufacturing Bhd’s (“EPMB”)
Sustainability Statement for the financial year ended 2020.
The Sustainability Statement is prepared in accordance with
the requirements provided in the Sustainability Reporting
Guide 2nd edition and tool kits issued by Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad, and encompasses the aspects of EPMB’s
economic, environmental and social factors.
We at EPMB, strive to improve the integration of sustainability
into our working environment, business processes and
strategies.
SCOPE OF THE REPORT
This report focuses on our automotive parts manufacturing
plants in Malaysia. The scope has not changed from the
previous reporting period.
REPORTING PERIOD
This report, which will be produced annually, covers the
period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (Fiscal/
Financial Year 2020).

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE
The Management Committee which consists of the Executive Directors and head of companies has been assigned the
responsibilities for sustainability matters of the Group. This committee oversees the planning and execution of sustainability
goals to manage the economic, environmental and social risks and opportunities.
STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
Stakeholder engagement is an important and integral aspect to the development of sustainability strategy and subsequent
long-term sustainable growth.
EPMB and its subsidiary companies uses a variety of channels to seek feedback from stakeholders on issues that are of
importance to the business and the stakeholders. The table below identifies the stakeholders we engaged with, the mode and
frequency of engagement and the areas of concern.
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Stakeholder

Mode of Engagement

Frequency of
Engagement

Stakeholders Concern
Sustainability Issues

Shareholders &
Investors

•

Annual General Meeting

•

Annually

•

•

Extraordinary General Meeting

•

As needed

Corporate Governance/
Sustainability

•

Announcement to Bursa Malaysia

•

As needed

•

Profitability

As needed

•

Sales volume

•

Financial performance  

•

Industry environment

•

Government
and Regulators

Customer

Supplier

Employees

Electronic communication/website

•

•

Income tax filing

•

Annually

•

Timely tax filing

•

Annual return/Semi annual return

•

Annually/
Semi annually

•

Timely submission

•

Audited financial statements

•

Annually

•

•

Quarterly financial results

•

Quarterly

Quarterly and yearly financial
reporting

•

Sales & Services Tax (“SST”)
reporting

•

Monthly

•

Timely SST filing and compliance

•

Duty exempt

•

As needed

•

Duty exemption application

•

Seminar organised by regulators

•

As needed

•

Compliance with legal regulations

•

Electronic communication

•

As needed

•

Consultations/feedback

•

Customer feedback

•

As needed

•

Customer satisfaction

•

Questionnaire/Survey

•

As needed

•

Product quality

•

Social media/Website

•

As needed

•

After sales service

•

Electronic communication

•

As needed

•

Products/services delivered

•

Vendor briefing

•

As needed

•

Consumer data and privacy

•

Quality system accreditation

•

As needed

•

Quality certification

•

Business negotiation

•

Continuous

•

Supply chain management

•

Supplier relationship management

•

Continuous

•

Resource use and waste

•

Supplier evaluation

•

Annually

•

Product quality

•

Products/services delivered

•

Monthly payroll  

•

Monthly

•

Prompt salary payments

•

Staff appraisals

•

Annually

•

Performance management

•

Management meetings

•

Monthly

•

Career development

•

Training and product knowledge

•

Continuous

•

Compensation and benefit

•

Management meeting with Union

•

As needed  

•

Fostering closeness and team
work

•

Empowerment and accountability

•

Stress, balance and workload

•

Learning and development

•

Employee health and safety

•

Industry harmony

•

Human rights
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT
Identifying materiality involves taking account of EPMB’s Economic, Environmental and Social impact assessments and
the concerns of its stakeholders. From the outcome of the stakeholder engagement, the Management Committee of the
Company draws up the list of materiality matters from both internal and external perspectives.
The list was then prioritised and formed the basis for the Group’s sustainability strategy and focus. Management Committee
in the respective companies then monitor and manage the sustainability matters.
The factors that were identified as highly significant in its impact on EPMB’s business and stakeholders, are listed below.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Occupational Health and Safety
Operation Efficiency
Waste Reduction
Energy Conservation
Environmental Management
Learning and Intellectual Growth
Social Participation and Relation
Risk Mitigation

STRATEGIC DIRECTION
Our business units are guided by a framework which we have
developed for a strategic push towards driving sustainable
business growth.

Profit

The foundation is based on methodologies for organisational
excellence such as:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Kaizen (Continuous improvement)
Total Productive Maintenance (“TPM”)
8 Waste elimination (8 Muda) – Transportation,
Inventory, Motion, Waiting, Overprocessing,
Overproduction, Defects and Skills Underutilised
Environmental Management System (“EMS”)
Mieruka (Visual Management)
Heijunka (Standardisation)
5S (Seri–Sort), (Seiton–Set in order), (Seiso-Shine),
(Seiketsu–Standardise), (Shitsuke–Sustain/Selfdiscipline)

The 3 pillars of Just-in-time (“JIT”), Competent Staff and All
Time Quality will support our goals for continued customer
satisfaction and achieving improvements in quality, efficiency,
cost reduction and profits. This framework is applied across
the Group. Subsidiary companies form Groups to conduct
such activities to improve productivity, quality, delivery,
and efficiency, thereby creating a sense of employee
commitment, accountability, empowerment and education
which in turn reflect towards stakeholder satisfaction and
business sustainability.
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Cost Level

Quality
Level

Efficiency
Level

STAKEHOLDERS SATISFACTION
JIT (Just-in-time)

Competent Staff

All Time Quality

Right Port,
Right Time and
Right Amount

Right Skill and
Right Work Culture

Make Problem Visible
and
Do Right Correction

Continous Flow

Common Goals

Kanban-Pull System

Teamwork

Takt Time Plan

Cross Training

Value Stream Map’

Safety

SMED

Motivation

Production Leveling

High Morale

Capacity

ICC / QCC

Jidoka Autonomation
Build In Quality
Poka-yoke
Standard Process
5 Why’s
8 D’s

FOUNDATION
5S
Kaizan (Continuous
Improvement)
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TPM

8 Muda (Wastes)
Mieruka (Visual
Management)

EMS
Heijunka
(Standardisation)
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ECONOMIC
In this section of the report, we will highlight our initiatives on managing economic factors which are considered material to
our business such as technology advancement, mitigating risks on customer base, foreign exchange exposure, supply and
cost of raw materials and proficiency of manpower.
TECHNOLOGY ADVANCEMENT
EPMB has good cooperation with JV partner Y-tec Corporation, Japan, its Technical Agreement (“TA”) partner, Keylex
Corporation, Japan and technical support from Japanese Tier-1 vendor of Honda Malaysia Sdn. Bhd..
Process methodologies learnt from our technical partners have been incorporated into the new assembly lines in our other
plants.
EP Polymers (M) Sdn. Bhd. will be collaborating with a Tier-1 Air Intake Manifold supplier to Geely for the supply of tooling and
components for the localisation project with Proton.
Peps-JV (M) Sdn. Bhd. is the pioneer company selected in the pilot programme by the Malaysia Automotive Robotics & IoT
Institute (“MARii”) in preparing the local automotive industry for Industry 4.0. We also regularly engage the expertise of MARii
on programmes for improving the Lean Production System (“LPS”) at Peps-JV (M) Sdn. Bhd.. The Manufacturing Execution
System (“MES”) in our stamping line has been upgraded to a MySQL database which is cloud ready.
MITIGATING RISKS
Key areas of risks are identified and addressed in order to maintain sustainability and competitiveness in the current challenging
market.
•

Diversification of Customer Base
The Group employs Good Manufacturing Practices (“GMP”) and practices steps to enhance Safety, Quality, Cost, Delivery,
and Morale (“SQCDM”) to stay competitive and to remain as the preferred Tier-1 supplier for our current customers.
Through our Joint Ventures and Technical Collaboration with our partners from Japan, we have added Toyota to our
portfolio of non-national carmaker customers in 2020.

•

Foreign Exchange Exposure
In order to avoid losses due to fluctuations in foreign currency, which affect imports and exports, a back-to-back
arrangement with customers and suppliers are made during contract price reviews. To reduce price volatility for
components purchased from China, we have converted the transaction currency to Chinese yuan from US dollar.

•

Increase of Raw Materials and Purchase Parts
Our participation in the Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEMs’”) Centralised Purchasing System for raw material
purchases, provides assurance of supply and cost competitiveness. We have successfully implemented Value-Added
Value Engineering (“VAVE”) activities such as alternative parts sourcing in collaboration with our customers. Group-wide
use of Enterprise Resources Planning (“ERP”) ensures efficient material planning and inventory control.

•

Proficiency of Manpower
Continuous learning and training is crucial to produce a competent and proficient workforce. Training modules made
available to our staff cover technical skills, engineering knowledge and quality management among others. We focused
on strategies to reduce manufacturing costs, improve quality and productivity through programs such as the Lean
Production System (“LPS”).
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ENVIRONMENTAL
EPMB is committed to enhancing its environmental conservation efforts in respect of its activities and products. EPMB places
great emphasis to minimise the impact of its operations on the environment.
Resource conservation is emphasised in EPMB. We strive to improve our manufacturing processes towards a reduction in the
use of raw materials and energy even at the part design stage and through VAVE.
There are Safety, Health and Environment (“S.H.E”) practices and policies in place within the Group’s operations to enhance
the protection of the environment. Our subsidiary, EP Polymers (M) Sdn. Bhd. has been certified with compliance to
Environmental Management standards ISO14001:2015, and the experience gained with the certification will be transferred to
other companies within the Group.
We ensure responsible handling of industrial effluents and discharges which are treated in full compliance with regulations
from the Department of Environment (“DOE”). We have an in-house Industrial Effluent Treatment System (“IETS”). For the
disposal of sludge, we have appointed DOE’s designated waste-disposal agencies, namely Kualiti Alam Sdn. Bhd. and Green
Nature Elite Sdn. Bhd..
Our 2MW photovoltaic plant in Batang Kali has continued to provide a clean source of renewable energy since 2013. The
Building Integrated Photovoltaic (“BPIV”) system covers approximately 3.2 acres of roof space, and yields a capacity of 2MW
of renewable energy using clean technology. This BPIV system reduces CO2 emissions by approximately 40,000 tons per
year. We have supplied 1,912 MWh in 2020.
The contract for the sale of renewable energy back to Tenaga Nasional Berhad (“TNB”) via a Feed In Tariff (“FIT”) scheme will
run till year 2034.

Inculcating and implementing a safe and clean environment for our employees through:
•

The 5S culture
A well organised workspace improves efficiency, effectiveness, discipline and safety. We inculcate this with the training
and implementation of the 5S concept at the work place. The Japanese concept of 5S (Seiri, Seiton, Seiso, Seiketsu and
Shitsuke) stands for the 5 steps of this methodology: sort, set in order, shine, standardise and sustain.

•

Enhance safety at the workplace
We value the importance of safety at the workplace. Employees undergo safety training before they are allowed to work
on the factory floor. We also provide employees with proper uniforms and Personal Protective Equipment (“PPE”) to
improve safety. These are mandatory requirements within the scope of our Safety and Health Rules and Regulations
established at our plants.
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•

Cleanroom facilities
We provide a cleanroom facility for the assembly of engine-related components such as fuel rails and intake air fuel
modules (“IAFM”) that require high levels of safety specifications, as well as for the protection of employees. This is also
one of the feature that is in compliance to our ISO14001:2015 accreditation.

•

Recreational facilities
We value the contribution from employees and believe that a balance work and healthy lifestyle promotes staff well-being
and encourages staff retention.

With the implementation of the above practices, we are able to provide a clean, safe and healthy working environment.
ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM WITH ISO14001:2015 ACCREDITATION, ENSURING:
•

A green and clean working environment
Providing proper clean room facilities for the manufacture of particulate contamination sensitive high-end value-added
components and maintaining a green environment surrounding the manufacturing plants.

•

Waste management and recycling practices
Establishing systems and rules in the disposal of wastes to protect the environment, including a dedicated in-house
effluent treatment system and proper sludge disposal via a specialised waste-disposal agency.

•

Total preventive maintenance
Ensuring regular and systematic upkeep of production equipment to avoid unnecessary losses in production due to
unscheduled downtime.

•

Safety at the workplace
Providing proper safety training and protection attire for employees and establishing strict implementation of rules and
regulations in the manufacturing plants.

ENERGY CONSERVATION
Electricity is the main energy resource consumed in our operations and we strive for improved efficiencies for the conservation
of energy.
Total Preventive Maintenance (“TPM”) systems are in place to ensure our equipment is running optimally, thus reducing
operating and downtime costs.
We always look to improving our process flows for greater efficiency, waste and reject reduction. Consequently, this will lead
to better energy conservation.
In the introduction new assembly lines, consideration is given to the process lay-out and optimising the specifications of
process equipment to reduce the energy and operating costs.
The roofs of our factories have spaces that allow access to natural lighting to reduce the energy consumption for lighting
during the day. We have also reallocated and consolidated our office spaces to reduce the energy consumption for airconditioning and lighting.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
LEARNING AND INTELLECTUAL GROWTH
EPMB recognises employees as an asset for the Group and opportunities for continuous learning, training and intellectual
growth are provided to ensure employees have the required competencies and motivation to perform.
The Group also believes in providing career progression path for its employees. The preference is for promoting internally and
mentoring existing employees for future leadership positions.
EPMB provides on-the-job training, specialised courses and cross training to ensure a competent and flexible workforce. This
provides us the ability to schedule and arrange our manpower resources to meet the changing business needs.
Training on Company Policy and Safety

COVID-19 preventive measures

Training on company policy and safety is provided to staff to
ensure adherence to working guidelines and workers’ wellbeing.

Among the actions taken included conducting swab tests for
employees, complying strictly with the Standard Operating
Procedures (“SOPs”) recommended by the Ministry of Health
(“MOH”) such as applying physical distancing measures in
work places, canteens and buses, wearing of face masks,
recording temperature measurements of employees when
entering the premises, regular sanitising of work spaces and
conducting meetings online.

Induction Programme for new employees
New foreign employees go through an induction programme
conducted by in-house trainers to familiarise with the work
requirements.

Training conducted prior to MCO 1.0
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Corporate Governance
Overview Statement
The Board of Directors of EP Manufacturing Bhd (“EPMB”
or “the Company”) is committed to ensuring that good
corporate governance is practiced throughout the Group
as a fundamental part of discharging its responsibilities, as
an integral part of its business dealings and culture with the
objective of achieving its corporate mission and enhancing
sustainable shareholders’ value.
The Corporate Governance Overview Statement outlines the
following principles and recommendations which the Group
has comprehended and applied with the best practices outlines
in the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (“MCCG”): Principle A - Board Leadership and Effectiveness
Principle B - Effective Audit and Risk Management
Principle C - Integrity in Corporate Reporting and Meaningful
Relationship with Stakeholders
This statement is presented pursuant to Paragraph 15.25(1)
of the Main Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”) of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) and it is meant
to be read together with the Corporate Governance Report
2020 (“CG Report”) of the Company.
The detailed application for each Practice as set out in MCCG
is disclosed in the CG Report which is available on EPMB’s
website at www.epmb.com.my and through an announcement
on the website of Bursa Securities. The CG Report is prepared
based on a prescribed format as outlined under paragraph
15.25(2) of the MMLR of Bursa Securities.

PRINCIPLE A - BOARD LEADERSHIP AND
EFFECTIVENESS: BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES
Board Responsibilities
The Board recognises the key role in providing stewardship
to the Group’s strategic direction and has assumed their
principal roles and responsibilities in discharging its fiduciary
and leadership functions.
The Board is chaired by the Executive Chairman, Encik
Hamidon Bin Abdullah. The Executive Chairman is primarily
responsible for the setting of Group’s strategic direction and
orderly and effective conduct of the Board. Together with the
Deputy Executive Chairman and Executive Directors, they
are responsible for the overall operational effectiveness and
implementation of corporate strategies and decisions of the
Board.

To assist in the effective discharge of the Board’s stewardship
responsibilities, the Board has established Board committees,
namely Audit Committee (“AC”), Nomination Committee (“NC”)
and Remuneration Committee (“RC”) which are entrusted to
oversee specific Company’s affairs within their respective
terms of reference. The Chairman of the respective Committees
will report to the Board the outcome of the committee meetings
for the Board’s considerations and approvals.
The Board has also worked together with management in
implementing and promoting good corporate governance
culture for the Group.
The Board Charter provides guidance in respect of the
Board’s roles and responsibilities as well as the practices and
procedures to be applied by the Board and its committees in
discharging their functions. The Board will review and update
the Board Charter whenever necessary and in accordance
with any new regulations affecting the discharging of their
responsibilities. The Board Charter can be viewed at the
Company’s website at www.epmb.com.my.
The Directors have full access to the advice and services of the
qualified Company Secretary who is responsible for ensuring
proper conduct of board affairs and compliance of applicable
laws, rules, procedures and regulations. The Board is regularly
updated by the Company Secretary on changes of statutory
or regulatory requirements impacting the discharging of the
Directors’ duties.
The Company Secretary is also responsible for ensuring that
the Board and Board Committees meeting procedures are
followed and minutes of meetings are circulated and confirmed
as a correct record by the Board and Board Committees at the
following meeting. The signed and confirmed Board and Board
Committees minutes are entered into the minutes books kept
in accordance with statutory requirements.
The Board is scheduled to meet on a quarterly basis with
additional meetings to be convened when necessary. An annual
meeting calendar is prepared and circulated to the Directors
before the beginning of each year to ensure that the Directors
are able to plan ahead and to ensure their attendance at those
meetings. The Directors are provided with an agenda and the
relevant Board papers issued at least 5 days from the date of
Board Meeting to enable them to have an overview of matters
to be discussed or reviewed at the meetings.
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The Board met five (5) times during the financial year ended 31
December 2020, and the attendance record for each Director
is shown below:Name

Attendance

%

Hamidon Bin Abdullah

5/5

100

Zulkefly Bin Baharuddin

5/5

100

Johan Bin Hamidon

5/5

100

Aidan Hamidon

5/5

100

Dr Linden Hamidon

5/5

100

Shaari Bin Haron

4/5

80

Tan Sri Datuk Hussin Bin Haji Ismail

5/5

100

Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz Bin Hashim

5/5

100

Hew Voon Foo

5/5

100

The Board reviewed and deliberated the businesses set out
in a formal agenda including principal matters on financial
and operational performance, annual budget, business
development and investment plans during the meetings.
All matters discussed and resolutions passed at the Board
meetings are properly recorded in the minutes of meetings.

The Board has also formalised the whistle blowing procedures
which provides an avenue for employees and other
stakeholders to raise genuine concerns on any unethical
behavior, misconduct or non-compliance of policies at the
earliest opportunity. The Company also provides assurance
that the whistle blower will be protected from any retaliation
or adverse impact on his/her employment or relationship with
the Group, provided that the report is made in good faith and
without malice.
In compliance with the requirement of Section 17A of the
Malaysian Anti-Corruption Commission (“MACC”) Act 2009,
the Company has adopted the Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption
Policy. The Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy (“Policy”)
sets out the expectations for internal and external parties
working for and on behalf of the Group in preventing bribery
or corrupt practices in relation to the Group’s businesses. The
Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy is available on the
Company’s website at www.epmb.com.my.

PRINCIPLE A - BOARD LEADERSHIP AND
EFFECTIVENESS: BOARD COMPOSITION
Board Composition

In the intervals between Board meetings, any matters requiring
urgent Board decisions and approval will be sought via circular
resolutions.
The Board is committed to devote sufficient time to carry out
their duties and responsibilities and have submitted updates
on their other directorships semi-annually. All Directors have
adequately complied with the minimum attendance of 50% at
Board meeting and have not exceeded the maximum of five
(5) directorships in public listed companies as required under
the MMLR of Bursa Securities.
The Board is committed to promoting good business conduct
and maintaining a healthy corporate culture that engenders
integrity, transparency and fairness. The Board, management,
employees and other stakeholders are clear on what is
considered acceptable behaviour and practice in the Company.
The Board has formalised a Code of Conduct (“the Code”) which
is incorporated in the Board Charter, setting out the standard
of conduct expected from Directors, Senior Management and
employees. The Code relies on principle in relation to honesty,
integrity, professionalism, independence, accountability,
responsibility, transparency, fairness, competence and
confidentiality which are embedded into the Group’s business
operations and corporate culture. The Board has reviewed the
Code periodically to ensure it remains relevant and appropriate.
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The present Board was made up of nine (9) directors comprising
an Executive Chairman, Deputy Executive Chairman, two (2)
Executive Directors and five (5) Non-Executive Directors of
which four (4) are Independent Directors. The Board currently
has one female Director.
Independent Directors comprise 44% (4 out of 9) of current
Board composition, satisfying the independence test under
Paragraph 15.02 of the MMLR of Bursa Securities, that a
listed issuer must ensure that at least 2 directors or 1/3 of the
board of directors of a listed issuer, whichever is the higher,
are Independent Directors.
The Board is mindful of the recommendation of the MCCG that
the Board must comprise of at least half being Independent
Directors. The Board, with the Nomination Committee is
continuously searching for suitable candidates to be appointed
as Independent Director of the Company to bring the level
of Independent Director on the Board to a majority level and
achieving MCCG’s requirement of at least half of the Board
comprising of Independent Directors.
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The Board recognises diversity as an important criteria to
determine board composition and to ensure that different
perspectives are considered for Board effectiveness. In the
nomination and selection process, specific consideration
is given to the candidate’s skills, knowledge, expertise,
experience, age, culture, background, gender, competencies,
other directorships, time availability and the overall balance
in composition of the Board and in the case of independent
director, his ability to discharge such responsibilities or
functions as expected from an independent director. The
Company had adopted the Diversity Policy which outlined the
approach to achieving and maintaining diversity on its Board
and Senior Management.
The Nomination Committee met once during the financial year,
performed annual assessment and evaluation on all individual
Directors, Board and Board Committees and Independent
Directors.
The Nomination Committee and Board, through their annual
assessment, reviewed and recommended the retention of
Encik Shaari Bin Haron who has served the Board for more than
twelve (12) years and Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz Bin Hashim who has
served the Board for more than nine (9) years as Independent
Director on the Board, subject to shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) on the following
justifications:
(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)

(e)

they fulfilled the criteria under the definition of
independent director as set out in the MMLR, and
therefore were able to bring independent and objective
judgement to the Board;
they have contributed sufficient time and effort and
attended all the Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee and Board Meetings for
informed and balanced decision making;
their experience enables them to provide the Board
with a diverse set of experience, expertise, skills and
competence;
they have exercised due care during their tenure as
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company
an carried out their professional duties in the interest of
the Company and shareholders; and
they have been with the Company long and understand
the Company’s business operations which enable them
to participate actively and contribute during deliberations
at NC, RC, AC and Board Meeting.

Encik Shaari with his extensive experience in legal practice,
was able to contribute valuable independent professional
views and judgement in board discussion and decision making.
Dato’ Ikmal has seated on the board in various industries.
His vast experience has enabled his contribution of valuable
independent advise to the Company. They have continued
to display high level of integrity and were objective in their
judgement and decision making in the best interest of the
Company.

The Board should seek annual shareholders’ approval for
retention of Encik Shaari who has served the Board for more
than twelve (12) years through a two-tier voting process in the
general meeting to be held on 28 May 2021.
In accordance with the Company’s Constitution, one-third (1/3)
of the Directors shall retire from office at each AGM but shall
be eligible for re-election. All Directors shall retire at least once
in every three years. A Director appointed during the year shall
retire from office and be eligible for re-election at the following
AGM after his appointment. This provision is adhered to by the
Board in every AGM and the information on Directors standing
for re-election is provided in the annual report. The Nomination
Committee also recommended for the Board to endorse the
re-election of the relevant Directors at the forthcoming AGM.
The Directors are continuously encouraged to attend
continuous education programmes and continuous trainings
to enhance their knowledge and skills and keep abreast with
the changing environment in which the business operates.
During the year, the Directors have attended the following
development programs and seminar:-

COVID-19 Leverage on Tax Measures to maximise cash
flow
KPMG webinar series | Captain’s Forum: Transformation
towards recovery: Section 1: Financial Resilience
KPMG webinar series | Captain’s Forum: Transformation
towards recovery: Section 3: Technology and Data
KPMG webinar series | Audit Committee Institute Virtual
Roundtable 2020
Workshop on Corporate Liability Provision (Section 17A)
of the MACC Act 2009: The Essential Steps
How to Drive, Survive and Thrive Through The Economic
Crisis

PRINCIPLE A - BOARD LEADERSHIP AND
EFFECTIVENESS: REMUNERATION
The Remuneration Committee comprises of four (4)
Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee shall develop and establish
with the Board a formal remuneration framework and
recommends to the Board the remuneration package of the
Executive Directors in all forms, drawing outside advice as
necessary. The determination of the remuneration package
for Non-Executive Directors shall be a matter for the board as
a whole. All Directors are provided with Directors’ fees, which
are approved by the shareholders at the AGM, based on the
recommendation of the Board.
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The Remuneration Committee aims to ensure that the
remuneration package is robust and effective to link Executive
Directors’ rewards to corporate and individual performance, to
link Non-Executive directors’ remuneration to their experience
and level of responsibilities undertaken and link Senior
Management’s remuneration to their performance, experience
and level of responsibilities.
During the financial year, the Remuneration Committee met
once to review the remuneration package of Directors and
recommend the payment of Directors’ fees for Directors’ and
Shareholders’ approval.
The details of the Directors’ remuneration for the financial year
ended 31 December 2020 are disclosed in the CG Report 2020
under Practice 7.1.
The Company has also in place a Directors’ and Officers’
liability insurance to indemnify the Directors against liability and
costs incurred by them in discharging their duties as Directors,
to the extent permitted under the Act.

PRINCIPLE B - EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK
MANAGEMENT: AUDIT COMMITTEE
Audit Committee
The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent
Director, who is not the Chairman of the Board. The Audit
Committee currently comprises of four (4) members of which
all are Independent Non-Executive Directors, complied with
Paragraph 15.09 of the MMLR of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad. The Company does not have any former key audit
partner being a member of the Audit Committee.
The Company maintained a professional and transparent
relationship with the Auditors, both internal and external, in
seeking their professional advice and ensuring compliance in
matters pertaining to accounting standards, risk management
and internal control. The Audit Committee was rendered the
authority to communicate directly with the External and Internal
Auditors.
The Audit Committee would convene meeting with the External
Auditors, without the presence of Executive Directors and
Management, to discuss any matters of concern arising from
the audit.
During the financial year, the Audit Committee had performed
annual evaluation of the competency and independence of the
External Auditors’ performance.
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PRINCIPLE B - EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK
MANAGEMENT: RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK
Risk Management and Internal Control
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
a sound system of internal control and risk management.
The Group has established a process to identify, evaluate
and manage significant risks which has been integrated and
embedded into the Group’s operations and is continuously
reviewing its adequacy and effectiveness to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. The Risk
Register is reviewed quarterly.
The Group outsourced its Internal Audit function to a
professional service provider. The Internal Auditors conducted
independent audit on the departments and functions within
the Group and reported their findings to the Audit Committee
during its quarterly meetings. The Internal Auditors report
directly to the Audit Committee.
The details of the Risk Management Process and Internal
Audit Function and Processes are disclosed in the Statement
on Risk Management and Internal Control of the Company’s
Annual Report.

PRINCIPLE C - INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE
REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP
WITH STAKEHOLDERS: COMMUNICATION WITH
STAKEHOLDERS
Communication with Stakeholders
The Company recognises the importance of effective
communications and maintaining constructive relationship
with its shareholders, investors and other stakeholders. The
Board practices transparency and accountability by ensuring
timely dissemination of material information relating to the
Group’s business activities, major development and financial
performance via Annual Reports, quarterly financial results,
announcement to Bursa Malaysia, circular to shareholders
and corporate website.
The Company is committed to ensure that the communication
and dissemination of material information pertaining to the
Group’s performance and operations to the shareholders,
stakeholders, regulators, analysts, media and investing public
are timely, accurate, factual, informative and in accordance with
the applicable regulatory and legal requirements.
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Whilst ensuring timely disclosure of information to its
shareholders, the Board is wary of the regulatory requirements
on release of material and price-sensitive information.
Such information will be disclosed to the public as soon as
practicable after due consideration through Bursa Malaysia
announcements or media releases.

The Company AGM to be held on 28 May 2021 and notice
is dated 28 April 2021. The Notice of AGM contain details
of resolutions to be approved by the shareholders with
explanatory notes. In line with the recommendation of MCCG,
the notice of 25th AGM was issued to the shareholders 28 days
prior to the AGM date.

The Group’s website at www.epmb.com.my provides relevant
information on the Company to the shareholders and general
public. The website includes among others, a dedicated
section on investor relations where announcements, corporate
information, Board Charter, Financial Statements, CG report
and Annual Reports are made available.

PRINCIPLE C - INTEGRITY IN CORPORATE
REPORTING AND MEANINGFUL RELATIONSHIP
WITH STAKEHOLDERS: CONDUCT OF GENERAL
MEETINGS
Conduct of General Meeting
General Meetings are important avenues for shareholders to
exercise their rights and to access and engage in dialogue with
the Board and Management. Shareholders are encouraged
to participate and raise their concerns and to exercise their
voting rights on the proposed resolutions. The outcome of
voting on the proposed resolutions will be announced to
the shareholders after the voting process and released via
Bursalink to the public.
The Directors, Chairman of the Board Committees and Senior
Management are also present to provide response if there are
any questions addressed to them. The Chairman provided
sufficient time and appropriate responses on issues raised.
External Auditors also present to provide their professional
and independent advice on relevant issues raised.
In facilitating greater shareholder participation, shareholders
are entitled to appoint representative or proxy/proxies to vote
on their behalf in their absence.
In 2020, the Company has conducted the 24th Annual General
Meeting on a fully virtual basis through live streaming and
online remote voting due to the COVID-19 pandemic and as
part of the safety measure to curb its spread. The Company
distributed together with the Notice of Annual General Meeting,
information on administrative details such as details of the
meeting, shareholders’ entitlement to attend the meeting, their
right to appoint proxy and information on remote online voting.
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Audit
Committee Report
COMPOSITION
The Audit Committee comprises of four (4) members of which all are Independent Non-Executive Directors, complied with
Paragraph 15.09 of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad:Chairman
Shaari Bin Haron (Senior Independent Non-Executive Director)
Members
Tan Sri Datuk Hussin Bin Haji Ismail (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz Bin Hashim (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Hew Voon Foo^ (Independent Non-Executive Director)
^ Member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants

TERMS OF REFERENCE
The Audit Committee is governed by its Terms of Reference, a copy of which is available on the Company’s website at
www.epmb.com.my.

MEETINGS
During the financial year, the Audit Committee held five (5) meetings and the details of the members’ attendance are as follows:Member

Attendance

%

Shaari Bin Haron

4/5

80

Tan Sri Datuk Hussin Bin Haji Ismail

5/5

100

Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz Bin Hashim

4/5

80

Hew Voon Foo

5/5

100

The Audit Committee meetings were convened with proper notices and agenda, these were distributed together with meeting
papers and relevant materials to all members before the meeting to facilitate effective deliberation among the members. Minutes
of all Audit Committee meetings were duly recorded and tabled for confirmation at the next Audit Committee meeting and
subsequently presented to the Board for review and notation.
The Audit Committee met with the External Auditors without presence of executive board members and Management on 26
February 2021 to discuss audit findings and any other observations that they may have during the audit process. There were
no major concerns raised by the External Auditors at the meeting.
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SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES AND WORKS
During the financial year, the following activities and works were undertaken by the Audit Committee, including the deliberation
on and review of:•

the unaudited quarterly results of the Group together with the announcements, before recommending to the Board for
approval. The review is to ensure that the unaudited quarterly results are in compliance with the Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards as well as the applicable disclosure provision of the
Listing Requirements of the Bursa Malaysia.

•

the annual audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2020
together with the Management and External Auditors before Board approval, focusing on compliance with applicable
accounting policies and standards, significant risk areas and the adjustments, estimates and assumptions made in
respect of the financial statements.

•

the External Auditor’s audit plan and scope, major audit findings, significant risks areas, key audit matters, management
letters together with management’s response.

•

the effectiveness of the external audit process and their performance. The Audit Committee will then recommend for the
Board’s approval on re-appointment of the External Auditors and their audit fee. The External Auditors also reported to
the Committee their policies, ethics and systems implemented to maintain independence and objectivity in discharging
their professional responsibilities.

•

the scope and coverage of Internal Audit Plan to ensure adequate scope and comprehensive coverage over the activities
of the Group.

•

the Internal Auditor’s reports which outlined the functions or activities audited, their audit findings, recommendations
towards correcting areas of weaknesses and improvement actions taken by the Management to enhance the internal
control system.

•

the Internal Auditors’ follow-up reports on previously reported outstanding audit issues to monitor the effectiveness of
improvement actions taken by Management.

•

the Internal Auditor’s personnel are free from any relationship or conflict of interest.

•

recurrent related party transactions entered by the Group to ascertain as to whether the transactions are carried out in
accordance to the shareholders’ mandate and have been entered into in the normal course of business under negotiated
basis and not detrimental to the interest of the minority shareholders.

•

the risk register of the Group setting out the risk areas identified and evaluated by the heads of finance and operational
units and the Management and the relevant control actions to manage or mitigate impact of the risks.

•

the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control, Audit Committee Report, Corporate Governance Overview
Statement and Corporate Governance Report to ensure adherence to regulatory reporting requirements and their
recommendation for the Board’s approval.

•

the Circular to shareholders in respect of the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back authority of up to 10% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company and Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Related Party
Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature.
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INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION
The internal audit function of the Group is outsourced to an independent professional service provider who reports directly to
the Audit Committee. The Internal Auditors carried out regular and systematic reviews and provided independent and objective
assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control of the operational functions audited. The Internal Auditors
adopt a risk-based audit approach, focusing its audit mainly on key processes and principal risk areas of the operational units.
During the financial year, the Internal Auditors reviewed and evaluated the internal control environment of various operating
functions within the Group in accordance with the audit plan and communicated their findings together with recommendations
for the Management’s corrective and improvement actions. The Internal Auditors reported to the Audit Committee on a quarterly
basis of their audit findings, recommendations, management responses and any follow-up matters from previous reports. The
Internal Auditors also reviewed the procedures relating to recurrent related party transactions.
Total cost incurred for internal audit function for the Group in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2020 amounted
to RM31,500.
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Statement on
Risk Management and Internal Control
INTRODUCTION
Pursuant to Paragraph 15.26(b) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa
Securities”) and as guided by Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance and Statement on Risk Management and Internal
Control: Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers, the Board of EP Manufacturing Bhd is pleased to include a statement on
the state of the Group’s system of risk management and internal control in this annual report.

BOARD RESPONSIBILITY
The Board recognises the importance of good risk management practices and sound internal controls as a platform for good
corporate governance. The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish and maintain a sound system of risk management
and internal control for the Group and affirms its commitment for reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the system and the
effectiveness of the risk management practices to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets. The system
encompasses policies, processes, activities and practices which are structured to facilitate effective and efficient operation
by enabling it to respond appropriately to significant business, operational, financial, human resources and compliance risks
to achieve the Group’s objectives.
The system is designed to manage and minimise rather than to completely eliminate the risk of failure in achieving the Group’s
business objectives. Accordingly, the system can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss or the occurrence of unforeseeable circumstances.
The Board delegates the implementation of the system to the Management Committee who reviews and reports on risks
identified and actions taken to control and mitigate risks.

KEY ELEMENTS OF INTERNAL CONTROL PROCESS
•

A functional organisation structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and level of authority to execute the Group’s
strategies and business operations.

•

Annual budgets for operating subsidiaries are prepared and consolidated at the Group level aligned with the Group’s
business direction. The Management meets with the heads of finance and operational units of the Group on a monthly basis
to review financial performance, operational efficiency, quality performance, project development and risk assessment.
During the meetings, the Management reviews and assesses the financial results and operational performance against
budget, analyses significant variances, strategises improvement or corrective actions to reinforce monitoring controls in
line with changes in business and operating conditions.

•

Certain subsidiaries continue to be accredited with IATF 16949 (2016 Edition) on quality management and ISO 14001:2015
on environmental management. Such systems are maintained through ongoing internal and surveillance audits to ensure
the systems are adequately implemented and continuously improved. Internal policies and procedures of the systems
are documented and standard operating procedures have been put in place.

•

The Group’s Internal Auditors perform regular reviews of business processes against internal policies, guidelines and
objectives, identify areas for improvement and assess overall effectiveness and efficiency of internal control systems.
Internal audit reports are reviewed by the Audit Committee at its quarterly meetings.

•

Audit Committee and Board meetings are held quarterly to review quarterly financial results, annual financial statements,
internal audit reports, business planning and development, recurrent related party transactions and any major risks
highlighted by the Management or any other matters reserved for Board consideration.

•

The Board has established a Board Charter which documents the roles and responsibilities, principles and guidelines to
be applied in practice by the Board and its committees.
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KEY ELEMENTS OF INTERNAL CONTROL PROCESS (cont’d)
•

The Group has always been committed to doing business with integrity. The Group Anti-Bribery & Anti-Corruption
Policy had also been formalised to guide the Group’s approach in combating bribery and corruption in order to guide
the Group’s employees and associated persons to act professionally, fairly and with integrity in all business dealings and
relationships. This also serves as one of the Group’s efforts in avoiding corporate liability risk.

•

Significant transactions involving the commitment of the Group’s assets, acquisition or disposal of assets or business,
joint venture and capital investment are reviewed and approved by the Board. Post-implementation reviews are also
conducted and reported to the Board.

•

The Group has a Performance Management System with core competencies assessment and leadership indicators to
review and assess employees’ performance and competency.

•

The Group has an IT Security Policy to ensure that access to information systems and confidential information is adequately
controlled and monitored.

•

In respect of joint ventures entered into by the Group, the representatives from the Group and the representatives from
the joint venture partner have regular updates to oversee the administration, operation and performance of the joint
venture. Financial reports are provided to the joint venture partner on a monthly basis. The Audited Financial Statements
are being furnished to the joint venture partner.

•

The Group will continue to foster a risk-awareness culture in all decision making and managing all risks in a proactive
and effective manner. This is to enable the Group to respond effectively to the changing business and competitive
environment.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS
The Board delegates the responsibility of identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks exposure to the Group to the
Management Committee. The Management Committee, heads of finance and operational units identify the relevant types of
risks and ascertains its root cause and exposure. Each risk is then evaluated and ranked based on its likelihood of occurrence
and the extent of the impact on the Group’s businesses. Control measures and action plans to manage or mitigate the risks
are determined. Current monitoring actions of the risks and its implementation status are reviewed and updated. These risks
are documented and updated in the Risk Register and are reported for review by the Audit Committee and the Board.
Significant risks arising from factors within the Group or changes in the market environment affecting the Group’s operations are
deliberated and monitored at the operational units and Group’s monthly management meetings. These risks are continuously
managed through efficient planning of resources, enhanced production processes and quality control, business and customer
diversification, continuous research and development and technical collaboration, as well as ongoing human capital development.
Throughout the years, these on-going internal control and risk management processes have been integrated and embedded
into the Group’s structure and conduct of business for the achievement of the Group’s objectives and strategies. The Board
will continue to review these processes to ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of the system.
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Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control
(Cont’d)

COVID-19 Pandemic
The Board and the Management Committee have proactively monitored and managed the impact to the Group’s business and
operations arising from COVID-19 pandemic. Since the outbreak of this pandemic, the Group has developed and adopted
stringent Standard Operating Procedures (“SOPs”) with additional preventive measures at all the offices and plants of the
Group to ensure the safety of all employees/workers.
During Movement Control Order (“MCO”), Conditional Movement Control Order (“CMCO”) and Recovery Movement Control
Order (“RMCO”), various safety and health measures were implemented, such as work-from-home, ensuring the sanitisation
of work place and plants, daily temperature screening, encouraging frequent hand washing and use of hand sanitisers in the
work place, ensuring social distancing, the requirements for visitors to register using “MySejahtera” before entering into the
premises and conducting virtual meetings.
The Group has implemented and focused on strategies to mitigate the impact of COVID-19 pandemic which include cost
reduction exercise, increasing production efficiency, minimising capital expenditure, cash flow planning and accepting banks’
moratorium to conserve cash flows.
In this respect, the Group has in place business continuity plans to provide adequate support for its business and employees,
and instituted new working arrangements for business continuity. The Group will continue to monitor the situation closely and
will do its best to protect its business and employees.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION
The Group outsources its internal audit function to a professional service provider as part of its efforts in ensuring that the Group’s
system of internal controls is adequate and effective. The Internal Auditors review and evaluate the adequacy and integrity of the
internal control system and risk management within the Group and report to the Audit Committee. The Internal Auditors provide
independent advisory services and reasonable assurance of the orderly and effective conduct of the operations of the Group.
The Internal Auditors are free from any relationships or conflicts of interest, which could impair their objectivity and independence
of the internal audit function. The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the internal audit function is able to function
independently.
The Internal Auditors review the various business processes, identify risks and internal control gaps, assess the state of control
of the selected key functions and recommend improvement measures to the internal control process. Follow-up audits are
also carried out to ensure weaknesses identified have been rectified and improvement or corrective actions have been or are
being carried out. Audit plan setting out the audit coverage and scope of work, and the quarterly audit reports are tabled for
adoption and reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board.
For the financial year ended 31 December 2020, only three (3) internal audit reviews were carried out and follow up status were
reported by the outsourced internal auditors due to MCO:Audit Period

Reporting in

Name of Entity Audited

Focus Areas

2nd Quarter
(April 2020 – June 2020)

August 2020

Peps–JV (Melaka) Sdn. Bhd.

Safety and Health

3rd Quarter
(July 2020 – September 2020)

November 2020

Peps–JV (Melaka) Sdn. Bhd.

Inventory Management

Peps–JV (M) Sdn. Bhd.

Procurement

EP Manufacturing Bhd.

Recurrent Related Party Transactions

4th Quarter (October 2020 –
February 2021
December 2020)

The Board will continue to improve and enhance the existing system of internal control to ensure its adequacy and relevance
in safeguarding the shareholders’ interest and the Group’s assets.
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Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control
(Cont’d)

REVIEW OF THIS STATEMENT BY EXTERNAL AUDITORs
Pursuant to paragraph 15.23 of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities, the External Auditors have reviewed
the Statement On Risk Management And Internal Control (“SORMIC”) pursuant to the scope set out in the Audit and Assurance
Practice Guide (“AAPG”) 3 issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA”) for inclusion in the 2020 Annual Report and
reported to the Board that nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the SORMIC is not prepared, in
all material aspects, in accordance with the disclosures required by paragraphs 41 and 42 of the Statement on Risk Management
and Internal Control Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers, nor is the SORMIC factually inaccurate. AAPG 3 does not require
the External Auditors to consider whether the SORMIC covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control system including the assessment and opinion by the Board
and management thereon. The External Auditors are also not required to consider whether the processes described to deal with
material internal control aspects of any significant problems disclosed in the annual report will, in fact, remedy the problems.

CONCLUSION
The Board is satisfied that the existing level of the system of internal control and risk management of the Group is adequate
and properly implemented and there are no significant weaknesses in the system that may have a material adverse impact on
the Group’s operations. The Board and the management will continue to take necessary measures to strengthen and enhance
the Group’s system in line with the evolving business development to meet the corporate objectives.
The Board has received assurance from the Executive Chairman and the Management Committee that the Group’s risk
management and internal control is operating adequately and effectively, in all material aspects, based on the risk management
and internal control system of the Group.
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Additional
Compliance Information
1.

Utilisation of Proceeds

	There were no proceeds raised by the Company from any corporate proposals during the financial year.
2.

Share Buy-backs
During the financial year, the Company bought back a total of 386,200 of its ordinary shares from open market, the detail
of which are as follows:-

Month
2020

No of shares
purchased

January

Minimum price
(RM)

Maximum price
(RM)

Average cost
per share
(RM)

Total
consideration
(RM)

18,000

0.350

0.370

0.358

6,444

269,500

0.250

0.370

0.296

79,890

April

49,500

0.215

0.265

0.244

12,090

May

35,000

0.260

0.300

0.288

10,090

4,200

0.295

0.300

0.298

1,250

10,000

0.295

0.300

0.297

2,970

March

July
August

As at 31 December 2020, a total of 7,958,800 ordinary shares were bought back and all the shares purchased were
retained as treasury shares in accordance with Section 127 of the Companies Act 2016. None of the treasury shares
were resold or cancelled during the financial year.
3.

Audit and Non-audit fees

	The audit and non-audit fees paid or payable to the External Auditors and its affiliate by the Group for the financial year
ended 31 December 2020 are as follows:
					
Company
					RM’000

Group
RM’000

Statutory audit fees paid/payable to:
KPMG				
94

392

Total (a)				
94

392

	Non-audit fees paid/payable to:
KPMG				22
Affiliate of KPMG				
11

22
67

	Total (b)				33

89

% of non-audit fees (b/a)				

35%

23%

	The amount of non-audit fees paid and payable to External Auditors and its affiliate during the financial year ended 31
December 2020 comprised of tax services rendered to the Group and the Company.
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Additional Compliance Information
(Cont’d)

4.

Material Contracts

	There were no material contracts (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business) entered into by
the Company and/or its subsidiaries, involving Directors’ and Major Shareholders’ interests during the financial year.
5.

Recurrent Related Party Transactions
Details of recurrent related party transactions entered into by the Group during the financial year ended 31 December
2020 are as follows:-

Related Party

EP Manufacturing
Bhd and/or its
subsidiaries

Nature of transactions
with related party

Aggregate value of
transactions for
financial year
ended 31/12/2020
(RM’000)

Companies in which the major shareholder
and Directors of the Company, Hamidon
bin Abdullah, Dr Linden Hamidon, Johan
bin Hamidon and Aidan Hamidon are
deemed to have interests:1)

KB Teknik Sdn. Bhd. (“KBT”)

Sales of automotive parts
to Fundwin

362

Peps-JV (M) Sdn. Bhd. Sales of automotive parts
to Peps-JV
(“Peps-JV”)

37,891

Rental of property from
Peps-JV

297

EP Manufacturing Bhd. Rental of property from
EPMB
(“EPMB”)

148

Fundwin

Sales of automotive parts
to Fundwin

78

EPMB

Rental of property from
EPMB

334

4)	Nadayu Murni Sdn. Bhd. (“NMSB”) EPMB

Rental of property from
EPMB

387

2)	Pesaka Nuri (M) Sdn. Bhd.
(“Pesaka”)

3)	Twin Ridge Sdn. Bhd. (“TRSB”)
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Directors’ Report

for the year ended 31 December 2020

The Directors hereby submit their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 December 2020.

Principal activities
The Company is principally engaged in investment holding activities whilst the principal activities of the subsidiaries are as
stated in Note 7 to the financial statements. There has been no significant change in the nature of these activities during the
financial year.

Subsidiaries
The details of the Company’s subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements.

Results
				
Group
				RM’000

Company
RM’000

(Loss)/Profit for the year attributable to:			
 Owners of the Company				
(15,156)
 Non-controlling interests				
252

462
–

				
(14,904)

462

Reserves and provisions
There were no material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year under review.

Dividends	
No dividend was paid since the end of the previous financial year and the Directors do not recommend any final dividend to
be paid for the financial year under review.

Directors of the Company
Directors who served during the financial year until the date of this report are:
Hamidon Bin Abdullah
Shaari Bin Haron
Dr. Linden Hamidon
Hew Voon Foo
Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz Bin Hashim
Johan Bin Hamidon
Aidan Hamidon
Tan Sri Datuk Hussin Bin Haji Ismail
Zulkefly Bin Baharuddin
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Directors’ Report
(Cont’d)

Directors of the Company (Cont’d)

EP Polymers (M) Sdn. Bhd.

ü

Fundwin Sdn. Bhd.

ü

Peps-JV (Kedah) Sdn. Bhd.

ü

Advance Product Systems Sdn. Bhd.

ü

EP Moulds & Dies (M) Sdn. Bhd.

ü

Peps-JV (Gurun) Sdn. Bhd.

ü

PT EP Metering & Services
PT Tirta Serang Madani

ü

ü

ü
ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü

ü
ü

ü

ü

ü

ü
ü

ü

Zulkefly Bin
Baharuddin

Aidan Hamidon

Johan Bin Hamidon

ü

ü

Adamsyah Fieter
Nelson Tarigan

ü

ü

Mohamad Jahiz Bin
Ikmal Hijaz

Peps-JV (Melaka) Sdn. Bhd.

Ong Tsuey Yun

ü

Mohd Nizam Bin
Mohamed

Peps-JV (M) Sdn. Bhd.

Dr. Linden Hamidon

Subsidiaries

Hamidon Bin
Abdullah

The Directors who held office in the subsidiaries of the Company during the financial year and up to the date of this report are:

ü

ü

ü

The information required to be disclosed pursuant to Section 253 of the Companies Act 2016 is deemed incorporated herein
by such reference to the financial statements of the respective subsidiaries and made a part hereof.

Directors’ interests in shares
The interests and deemed interests in the ordinary shares of the Company and of its related corporations (other than whollyowned subsidiaries) of those who were Directors at the financial year end (including the interests of the spouses or children
of the Directors who themselves are not Directors of the Company) as recorded in the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings
are as follows:
Number of ordinary shares
		At			At
		 1.1.2020
Bought
Sold
31.12.2020
Company				
				
Direct interest in the Company				
Hamidon Bin Abdullah		
8,447,133
600,000
–
Dr. Linden Hamidon		
1,329,384
–
–
Shaari Bin Haron		
20,000
–
–
				
Indirect interest in the Company				
Hamidon Bin Abdullah*		
65,218,833
–
–

9,047,133
1,329,384
20,000
65,218,833
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Directors’ interests in shares (cont’d)
Number of ordinary shares of USD1.00 each
		At			At
		 1.1.2020
Bought
Sold
31.12.2020
Subsidiaries				
				
PT EP Metering & Services				
Indirect interest in subsidiary 				
Hamidon Bin Abdullah		
315,000
–
–

315,000

Number of ordinary shares of Rp1,000,000 each
		At			At
		 1.1.2020
Bought
Sold
31.12.2020
PT Tirta Serang Madani				
Indirect interest in subsidiary 				
Hamidon Bin Abdullah		
900
–
*

–

900

Indirect interest by virtue of his substantial shareholdings in Mutual Concept Sdn. Bhd. and EP Properties (M) Sdn. Bhd.,
the registered owners of the shares of the Company.

By virtue of his interests in the shares of the Company, Hamidon Bin Abdullah is also deemed interested in the shares of the
subsidiaries during the financial year to the extent that the Company has an interest.
None of the other Directors holding office at 31 December 2020 had any interest in the ordinary shares of the Company and
of its related corporations during the financial year.

Directors’ benefits
Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Company has received nor become entitled to receive any benefit
(other than those fees and other benefits included in the aggregate amount of remuneration received or due and receivable
by Directors as shown in the financial statements or the fixed salary of a full time employee of the Company or of related
corporations) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm of which the
Director is a member, or with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest, other than certain Directors
who have substantial financial interests in companies which traded with certain companies in the Group in the ordinary course
of business as disclosed in Note 29 to the financial statements.
There were no arrangements during and at the end of the financial year which had the object of enabling Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Issue of shares and debentures
There were no changes in the issued and paid-up capital of the Company during the financial year. There were no debentures
issued during the financial year.

Options granted over unissued shares
No options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Company during the financial year.
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Indemnity and insurance cost
The following disclosure on particulars of indemnity given to, or insurance effected for, any Director or officer of the Company
is made pursuant to Section 289(7) of the Companies Act 2016:
				
Amount paid
				RM
			
Directors and Officers Liability Insurance				
14,585

Sum insured
RM
5,000,000

			
There was no indemnity given to, or insurance effected for auditors of the Company during the financial year.

Other statutory information
Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps to
ascertain that:
i)

all known bad debts have been written off and adequate provision made for doubtful debts, and

ii)

any current assets which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business have been written down to an
amount which they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:
i)

that would render the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the provision for doubtful debts in the Group
and in the Company inadequate to any substantial extent, or

ii)

that would render the value attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
misleading, or

iii)

which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and
of the Company misleading or inappropriate, or

iv)

not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements that would render any amount stated in the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

At the date of this report, there does not exist:
i)

any charge on the assets of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year and which
secures the liabilities of any other person, or

ii)

any contingent liability in respect of the Group or of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year.

No contingent liability or other liability of any company in the Group has become enforceable, or is likely to become enforceable
within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the Directors, will or may substantially
affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations as and when they fall due.
In the opinion of the Directors, the financial performance of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2020 have not been substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature nor has
any such item, transaction or event occurred in the interval between the end of that financial year and the date of this report.
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Auditors
The auditors, KPMG PLT, have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment.
The auditors’ remuneration is disclosed in Note 21 to the financial statements.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

...............................................................................
Hamidon Bin Abdullah
Director

...............................................................................
Aidan Hamidon
Director

Shah Alam, Malaysia
Date: 29 March 2021

50

EP MANUFACTURING BHD [Registration No. 199601017765 (390116-T )]

Statements of
Financial Position
as at 31 December 2020

Group
Note
2020
		RM’000

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
RM’000

2019
RM’000

Assets
 Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment properties
Intangible assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Investment in a joint venture
Deferred tax assets

276,601
2,178
14,417
85,078
–
372
5,056

304,648
2,840
14,417
85,748
–
502
5,033

457
–
44,793
–
210,429
–
–

739
–
45,590
–
210,429
–
–

Total non-current assets		383,702

413,188

255,679

256,758

43,624
69,529
4,889
4,614
–
29,711

55,307
84,996
3,068
3,068
1,428
24,415

–
19,726
24
41
–
287

–
12,049
–
46
–
401

Total current assets		152,367

172,282

20,078

12,496

Total assets		536,069

585,470

275,757

269,254

Equity
Share capital
Reserves

180,029
67,519

180,029
82,787

180,029
52,686

180,029
52,336

Equity attributable to
owners of the Company		247,548
Non-controlling interests		 (252)

262,816
(504)

232,715
–

232,365
–

Total equity		247,296

262,312

232,715

232,365

Liabilities
 Loans and borrowings
15
27,323
 Lease liabilities		
859
Deferred income
16
2,387
Deferred tax liabilities
9
4,496

31,945
1,503
2,576
4,343

–
–
–
4,496

–
–
–
4,343

Total non-current liabilities 		35,065

40,367

4,496

4,343

3
4
5
6
7
8
9

Inventories
10
 Trade and other receivables
11
Current tax assets		
 Prepayments and other assets		
 Other investments
12
Cash and cash equivalents
13

14
14

The notes on pages 60 to 123 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Group
Note
2020
		RM’000

2019
RM’000

 Loans and borrowings
15
155,210
 Lease liabilities		1,456
Deferred income
16
189
Current tax liabilities		
78
 Provision for warranties
17
92
 Trade and other payables
18
96,683

189,157
1,419
189
1,503
1,170
89,353

–
–
–
–
–
38,546

–
–
–
129
–
32,417

Total current liabilities		253,708

282,791

38,546

32,546

Total liabilities		288,773

323,158

43,042

36,889

Total equity and liabilities		536,069

585,470

275,757

269,254

The notes on pages 60 to 123 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Company
2020
RM’000

2019
RM’000

Statements of Profit or Loss
and Other Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2020

Group
Note
2020
		RM’000

2019
RM’000

Revenue
19
Cost of sales		

408,867
(384,705)

484,650
(446,493)

4,139
–

10,853
–

Gross profit		24,162
Other income		2,406
Distribution expenses		
(4,867)
Administrative expenses		(26,551)
Other expenses		
(302)

38,157
3,572
(7,960)
(33,391)
(1,102)

4,139
1
–
(3,121)
(38)

10,853
–
–
(2,915)
(2)

Results from operating activities		(5,152)

(724)

981

7,936

Finance income		220
Finance costs
20
(9,350)

286
(13,785)

429
(543)

384
(698)

Net finance costs		
Share of profit of equity-accounted
joint venture, net of tax		

(9,130)

(13,499)

(114)

(314)

915

1,977

–

–

(13,367)
(1,537)

(12,246)
(3,028)

867
(405)

7,622
(621)

(Loss)/Profit for the year		 (14,904)

(15,274)

462

7,001

(Loss)/Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company		
(15,156)
Non-controlling interests		
252

(15,274)
–

462
–

7,001
–

(Loss)/Profit for the year		 (14,904)

(15,274)

462

7,001

(Loss)/Profit before tax
Tax expense

21
22

Company
2020
RM’000

2019
RM’000

Total comprehensive (expense)/
income attributable to:						
Owners of the Company		
(15,156)
(15,274)
462
7,001
Non-controlling interests		
252
–
–
–
Total comprehensive (expense)/
income for the year		 (14,904)
Basic loss per ordinary share (sen)

24

(15,274)

(9.6)

462

7,001

(9.6)

The notes on pages 60 to 123 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Total
equity
RM’000

(5,063)

At 31 December 2020		180,029

The notes on pages 60 to 123 are an integral part of these financial statements.

		Note 14.1	Note 14.2

–
(112)

–
–

Total comprehensive expense for the year		
Repurchase of own shares
14

–

–

(4,951)

At 31 December 2019/1 January 2020		180,029

Loss for the year		

–
(98)

–
–

Total comprehensive expense for the year		
Repurchase of own shares
14

–

–

(4,853)

Loss for the year		

At 1 January 2019		 180,029

72,582

(15,156)
–

(15,156)

87,738

(15,274)
–

(15,274)

103,012

247,548

(15,156)
(112)

(15,156)

262,816

(15,274)
(98)

(15,274)

278,188

(252)

252
–

252

(504)

–
–

–

(504)

247,296

(14,904)
(112)

(14,904)

262,312

(15,274)
(98)

(15,274)

277,684

Group							

< ------- Attributable to owners of the Company ------- >
< --- Non-distributable --- > Distributable
						
Non		
Share
Treasury
Retained		controlling
Note
capital
shares
earnings
Total
interests
		RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

for the year ended 31 December 2020

Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity

Statement of
Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2020
< ----------- Attributable to owners of the Company ----------- >
< ---- Non-distributable ---- >
Distributable
		 Share
Treasury
Retained
Total
Note
capital
shares
earnings
equity
		RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
Company
At 1 January 2019		180,029
Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year		
–
Repurchase of own shares
14
–
At 31 December 2019/
1 January 2020		180,029
Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year		
–
Repurchase of own shares
14
–
At 31 December 2020		180,029

(4,853)

50,286

225,462

–
(98)

7,001
–

7,001
(98)

(4,951)

57,287

232,365

–
(112)

462
–

462
(112)

(5,063)

57,749

232,715

		Note 14.1	Note 14.2

The notes on pages 60 to 123 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of
Cash Flows

for the year ended 31 December 2020
Group
Note
2020
		RM’000

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
RM’000

2019
RM’000

Cash flows from operating activities						
(Loss)/Profit before tax		
(13,367)
(12,246)
867
7,622
Adjustments for:
   Amortisation of government grant
16
(189)
   Amortisation of intangible assets
6
705
   Bad debts written off		
1,349
   Depreciation of investment properties
5
–
   Depreciation of property, plant
   and equipment
3
37,365
   Depreciation of right-of-use assets
4
1,267
  Dividend income		
–
  Finance costs
20
9,350
  
Finance income		 (220)
   Gain on disposal of property, plant
   and equipment		
–
   Impairment loss on intangible assets
6
–
   Impairment loss on trade and other
   receivables
26
6
   Inventories written off
10
8,019
  Net unrealised foreign exchange gain
21
(194)
  Property, plant and equipment
   written off
3
507
  Provision for warranties
17
151
   Reversal of inventories written down
10
(234)
   Reversal of provision for warranties
17
(1,143)
   Reversal of impairment loss on trade
   and other receivables
26
–
   Share of profit of equity-accounted
    joint venture, net of tax
8
(915)

(187)
1,645
–
–

–
–
–
797

–
–
–
797

43,907
5,940
–
13,785
(286)

299
–
(1,500)
543
(429)

304
–
(8,000)
698
(384)

(43)
109

–
–

–
–

–
5,186
(215)

–
–
–

–
–
–

1
292
(437)
(70)

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

(92)

–

–

(1,977)

–

–

Operating profit before changes
in working capital		42,457
55,312
577
1,037
Changes in working capital:						
  Inventories		
3,898
4,550
–
–
  Trade and other receivables,
    prepayments and other assets		
12,524
(17,222)
(7,672)
4,918
  Trade and other payables		
5,640
5,934
6,129
(5,182)
Cash generated from/(used in)
  operations		64,519
Interest paid
20
(7,244)
 Tax paid		
(4,653)
Warranties paid
17
(86)

48,574
(9,151)
(5,065)
(108)

(966)
(543)
(405)
–

773
(698)
(348)
–

Net cash from/(used in) operating
  activities		52,536

34,250

(1,914)

(273)

The notes on pages 60 to 123 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Group
Note
2020
		RM’000

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
RM’000

2019
RM’000

Cash flows from investing activities						
Acquisition of investment properties
5
–
–
–
(17)
Acquisition of intangible assets
6
(35)
(527)
–
–
Acquisition of property, plant and
  equipment
(i)
(7,897)
(14,692)
(17)
(48)
Dividend received from a joint venture
8
1,045
2,426
–
–
Dividend received from subsidiaries		
–
–
1,500
–
Decrease/(Increase) in other investment		
1,428
(43)
–
–
Increase in pledged deposits with
  licensed banks		
(58)
(68)
–
–
Interest received		220
286
429
384
 Proceeds from disposal of property,
  
plant and equipment		–
5,414
–
–
Net cash (used in)/from investing
  activities		(5,297)

(7,204)

1,912

319

Cash flows from financing activities						
Interest paid
20
(2,106)
(4,634)
–
–
 Net drawdown of bankers’ acceptances		
(32,161)
21,770
–
–
 Net drawdown of other bank facilities		
30
358
–
–
 Payment of lease liabilities		
(1,214)
(13,620)
–
–
 Proceeds from drawdown of term loans		
5,199
6,278
–
–
Repayment of term loans		
(11,844)
(40,696)
–
–
Repurchase of treasury shares		
(112)
(98)
(112)
(98)
Net cash used in financing activities		 (42,208)

(30,642)

(112)

(98)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents		 5,031
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 	
13
12,299

(3,596)
15,895

(114)
401

(52)
453

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

12,299

287

401

13

17,330

The notes on pages 60 to 123 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cash outflows for leases as a lessee
Group
Note
2020
		RM’000
Included in net cash from operating
activities:
Payment relating to short-term leases
Payment relating to leases of lowvalue assets
Interest paid in relation to lease liabilities

21

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
RM’000

2019
RM’000

					
890
1,181
–
–

21
20

244
158

291
259

12
–

13
–

Included in net cash from financing
activities:
Payment of lease liabilities		

1,214

13,620

–

–

Total cash outflows for leases		
2,506

15,351

12

13

Note to the statements of cash flows
(i)

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
During the financial year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregate cost of RM9,825,000 (2019:
RM15,963,000), which includes borrowing costs capitalised of RM471,000 (2019: RM137,000) of which RM1,928,000
(2019: RM1,271,000) were within the credit terms from suppliers as of year end and being included in other payables
(see Note 18.4).

The notes on pages 60 to 123 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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240,036

Total liabilities from financing
activities
(25,910)

(34,418)
(13,620)
21,770
–
358
(391)

–
(391)
–
–
–

The notes on pages 60 to 123 are an integral part of these financial statements.

88,578
16,243
110,181
25,000
34

Term loans
Lease liabilities
Bankers’ acceptances
Revolving credit
Other bank facilities
690

–
690
–
–
–
214,425

54,160
2,922
131,951
25,000
392
(39,990)

(6,645)
(1,214)
(32,161)
–
30

		
Net				
Net
		
changes				
changes
		from
Foreign		 At
from
At
financing
exchange
Other 31.12.2019/
financing
1.1.2019 cash flows movement
changes
1.1.2020 cash flows
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

607

–
607
–
–
–

Other
changes
RM’000

175,042

47,515
2,315
99,790
25,000
422

At
31.12.2020
RM’000

Statements of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 December 2020
(Cont’d)

Notes to the
Financial Statements
EP Manufacturing Bhd is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia and is listed on the Main
Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The address of the principal place of business and registered office of the
Company is as follows:
Principal place of business/Registered office
No. 8 & 10, Jalan Jurutera U1/23
Seksyen U1
Kawasan Perindustrian Hicom Glenmarie
40150 Shah Alam
Selangor Darul Ehsan
The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group” and individually referred to as “Group entities”) and the
Group’s interest in a joint venture. The financial statements of the Company as at and for the financial year ended 31 December
2020 do not include other entities.
The Company is principally engaged in investment holding activities whilst the principal activities of the subsidiaries are as
stated in Note 7 to the financial statements.
These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2021.

1.

Basis of preparation
(a)

Statement of compliance

	The financial statements of the Group and the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of
the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.
	The following are accounting standards, interpretations and amendments of the MFRSs that have been issued by
the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) but have not been adopted by the Group and the Company:
MFRSs, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
•
Amendments to MFRS 9, Financial Instruments, MFRS 139, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, MFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, MFRS 4, Insurance Contracts and MFRS 16,
Leases – Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2
MFRSs, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
•
Amendments to MFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (Annual
Improvements to MFRS Standards 2018−2020)
•
Amendments to MFRS 3, Business Combinations – Reference to the Conceptual Framework
•
Amendments to MFRS 9, Financial Instruments (Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2018−2020)
•
Amendments to Illustrative Examples accompanying MFRS 16, Leases (Annual Improvements to MFRS
Standards 2018−2020)
•
Amendments to MFRS 116, Property, Plant and Equipment − Proceeds before Intended Use
•
Amendments to MFRS 137, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets − Onerous Contracts
− Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
•
Amendments to MFRS 141, Agriculture (Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2018−2020)
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1.

Basis of preparation (cont’d)
(a)

Statement of compliance (Cont’d)
MFRSs, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
•
MFRS 17, Insurance Contracts
•
Amendments to MFRS 101, Presentation of Financial Statements – Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and Disclosures of Accounting Policies
•
Amendments to MFRS 108, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors – Definition
of Accounting Estimates
MFRSs, interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date yet to
be confirmed
•
Amendments to MFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and MFRS 128, Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures – Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

	The Group and the Company plan to apply the abovementioned accounting standards, interpretations and
amendments:
•

from the annual period beginning on 1 January 2021 for the amendments that are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

•

from the annual period beginning on 1 January 2022 for those amendments that are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, except for Amendments to MFRS 1 and MFRS 141 which are
not applicable to the Group and the Company.

•

from the annual period beginning on 1 January 2023 for the accounting standard and amendments that are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, except for MFRS 17 which is not applicable
to the Group and the Company.

	The initial application of the abovementioned accounting standards, interpretations and amendments is not expected
to have any material financial impact to the current period and prior period financial statements of the Group and
the Company.
(b)

Basis of measurement

	The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis other than as disclosed in Note 2 and on
the assumption that the Group and the Company are going concerns.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group and the Company have net current liabilities of RM101,341,000 and
RM18,468,000 respectively and the Group’s net loss for the year was RM14,904,000. The preparation of the
financial statements on a going concern basis is dependent on the ability of the Group and the Company to
generate sufficient cash flows from their operations, utilisation of available credit facilities and obtaining continuous
financial support from their bankers and creditors to finance their operations, and achieving profitable operations.
The Group remains positive that it will be able to generate sufficient cash flows from its operations from its existing
projects and new projects being secured by the subsidiaries. In view of the foregoing, the Directors consider that
it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis and the Group and the Company
will be able to meet their liabilities as and when they fall due.
Accordingly, the financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification
of recorded asset amounts or additional amounts of liabilities that may be necessary if the Group and the Company
are unable to continue as a going concern.
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1.

Basis of preparation (cont’d)
(c)

Functional and presentation currency

	These financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is the Company’s functional currency.
All financial information is presented in RM and has been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.
(d)

Use of estimates and judgements

	The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with MFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
	Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
	There are no significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies
that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements other than those disclosed in
the following notes:
•
•
•
•

2.

Note 4   – Extension options and incremental borrowing rate in relation to leases
Note 6   – Measurement of the recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
Note 17 – Provision for warranties
Note 26 – Measurement of expected credit loss (“ECL”)

Significant accounting policies

	The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in these financial statements
and have been applied consistently by the Group entities, unless otherwise stated.
Changes in significant accounting policies
	The Group and the Company have early adopted Amendment to MFRS 16, Leases – Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
issued on 28 May 2020. The amendment introduces an optional practical expedient for leases in which the Group and
the Company are a lessee-i.e. for leases to which the Group and the Company apply the practical expedient, the Group
and the Company are not required to assess whether eligible rent concessions that are a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic are lease modifications. The Group and the Company have applied the amendment
retrospectively. The amendment has no impact on retained earnings at 1 January 2020. There was no significant impact
to the financial statements of the Group and the Company.
(a)

Basis of consolidation
(i)

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities, including structured entities, controlled by the Company. The financial statements
of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)
(a)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)
(i)

Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

	The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Potential voting rights
are considered when assessing control only when such rights are substantive. The Group also considers it
has de facto power over an investee when, despite not having the majority of voting rights, it has the current
ability to direct the activities of the investee that significantly affect the investee’s return.
Investments in subsidiaries are measured in the Company’s statement of financial position at cost less any
impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held for sale or distribution. The cost of investment
includes transaction costs.
(ii)

Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method from the acquisition date, which is
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
For new acquisitions, the Group measures the cost of goodwill at the acquisition date as:
•
•
•
•

the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus
the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus
if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing equity interest in the
acquiree; less
the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
For each business combination, the Group elects whether it measures the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the
acquisition date.
	Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group
incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.
(iii)

Acquisitions of non-controlling interests

	The Group accounts for all changes in its ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control as equity transactions between the Group and its non-controlling interest holders. Any difference
between the Group’s share of net assets before and after the change, and any consideration received or
paid, is adjusted to or against Group reserves.
(iv)

Loss of control

	Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the former
subsidiary, any non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the former subsidiary
from the consolidated statement of financial position. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is
recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the former subsidiary, then such interest is
measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity accounted
investee or as a financial asset depending on the level of influence retained.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)
(a)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)
(v)

Joint arrangements
Joint arrangements are arrangements of which the Group has joint control, established by contracts requiring
unanimous consent for decisions about the activities that significantly affect the arrangements’ returns.
Joint arrangements are classified and accounted for as follows:

(vi)

•

A joint arrangement is classified as “joint operation” when the Group or the Company has rights to the
assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to an arrangement. The Group accounts for each of
its share of the assets, liabilities and transactions, including its share of those held or incurred jointly
with the other investors, in relation to the joint operation.

•

A joint arrangement is classified as “joint venture” when the Group or the Company has rights only
to the net assets of the arrangements. The Group accounts for its interest in the joint venture using
the equity method. Investments in joint venture are measured in the Company’s statement of financial
position at cost less any impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held for sale or
distribution. The cost of investment includes transaction costs.

Non-controlling interests

	Non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting period, being the equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the equity holders of the Company, are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position and statement of changes in equity within equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group is presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of the profit or loss and the
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling interests and owners of the Company.
	Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling interests
even if doing so causes the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance.
(vii)

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

	Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted joint ventures are eliminated against the
investment to the extent of the Group’s interests in the investees. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
(b)

Affiliated companies
Affiliated companies are companies in which certain Directors of the Group have interests or are also Directors of
those companies.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)
(c)

Foreign currency
(i)

Foreign currency transactions

	Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the reporting period are
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date.
	Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are not retranslated at the end of
the reporting date, except for those that are measured at fair value which are retranslated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.
Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit or loss.
In the consolidated financial statements, when settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to
a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains
and losses arising from such a monetary item are considered to form part of a net investment in a foreign
operation and are recognised in other comprehensive income, and are presented in the foreign currency
translation reserve (“FCTR”) in equity.
(ii)

Operations denominated in functional currencies other than Ringgit Malaysia

	The assets and liabilities of operations denominated in functional currencies other than RM, including goodwill
and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated to RM at exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period, except for goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from business combinations before
1 January 2011 (the date when the Group first adopted MFRSs) which are treated as assets and liabilities
of the Company. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to RM at exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions.
Foreign currency differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the FCTR in
equity. However, if the operation is a non-wholly owned subsidiary, then the relevant proportionate share of
the translation difference is allocated to the non-controlling interests. When a foreign operation is disposed
of such that control, significant influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount in the FCTR related
to that foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling interests. When the Group
disposes of only part of its investment in an associate or joint venture that includes a foreign operation while
retaining significant influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified
to profit or loss.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)
(d)

Financial instruments
(i)

Recognition and initial measurement
A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised in the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the Group or the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without significant financing component) or a financial liability
is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issuance. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

(ii)

Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
Categories of financial assets are determined on initial recognition and are not reclassified subsequent to
their initial recognition unless the Group or the Company changes its business model for managing financial
assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period
following the change of the business model.
Amortised cost
Amortised cost category comprises financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The financial
assets are not designated as fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial
assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced
by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
Interest income is recognised by applying effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount except for
credit impaired financial assets (see Note 2(k)(i)) where the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost.
All financial assets are subject to impairment assessment (see Note 2(k)(i)).
Financial liabilities

	The category of financial liabilities at initial recognition is as follows:
Amortised cost
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gains or losses
on derecognition are also recognised in profit or loss.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)
(d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
(iii)

Regular way purchase or sale of financial assets
A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets is recognised and derecognised, as applicable, using trade
date or settlement date accounting in the current year.

	Trade date accounting refers to:
(a)
(b)

the recognition of an asset to be received and the liability to pay for it on the trade date; and
derecognition of an asset that is sold, recognition of any gain or loss on disposal and the recognition
of a receivable from the buyer for payment on the trade date.

Settlement date accounting refers to:
(a)
(b)

the recognition of an asset on the day it is received by the Group or the Company; and
derecognition of an asset and recognition of any gain or loss on disposal on the day that is delivered
by the Group or the Company.

Any change in the fair value of the asset to be received during the period between the trade date and the
settlement date is accounted in the same way as it accounts for the acquired asset.
Generally, the Group or the Company applies settlement date accounting unless otherwise stated for the
specific class of asset.
(iv)

Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantees issued are initially measured at fair value. Subsequently, they are measured at higher
of:
•
•

the amount of the loss allowance; and
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised
in accordance to the principles of MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

Liabilities arising from financial guarantees are presented together with other provisions.
(v)

Derecognition
A financial asset or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire or are transferred, or control of the asset is not retained or substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred to another party. On derecognition of a
financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the sum of consideration
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)
(d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)
(v)

Derecognition (Cont’d)
A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expires. A financial liability is also derecognised when its terms are modified
and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case, a new financial liability
based on modified terms is recognised at fair value. On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit
or loss.

(vi)

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group or the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and liability simultaneously.

(e)

Property, plant and equipment
(i)

Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. The cost of self-constructed assets
also includes the cost of materials and direct labour. For qualifying assets, borrowing costs are capitalised
in accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing costs.

	Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that
equipment.
When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
	The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and is recognised net
within “other income” and “other expenses” respectively in profit or loss.
(ii)

Subsequent costs

	The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the component will flow
to the Group or the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
component is derecognised to profit or loss. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and
equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

68

EP MANUFACTURING BHD [Registration No. 199601017765 (390116-T )]

Notes to the Financial Statements
(Cont’d)

2.

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)
(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)
(iii)

Depreciation
Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of individual
assets are assessed, and if a component has a useful life that is different from the remainder of that asset,
then that component is depreciated separately.
Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
component of an item of property, plant and equipment from the date that they are available for use. Freehold
land is not depreciated. Property, plant and equipment under construction (capital work-in-progress) are not
depreciated until the assets are ready for their intended use.

	The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
Buildings					
50 years
Renovation					
5 – 10 years
Equipment, furniture and fittings				
2 – 13 years
Plant and machineries					
3 – 10 years
Solar						
20 years
Motor vehicles					
5 – 7 years
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of the reporting period, and
adjusted as appropriate.
(f)

Leases
(i)

Definition of a lease
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether:
•

the contract involves the use of an identified asset – this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset.
If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

•

the customer has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

•

the customer has the right to direct the use of the asset. The customer has this right when it has the
decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used.
In rare cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined,
the customer has the right to direct the use of the asset if either the customer has the right to operate
the asset; or the customer designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose
it will be used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease and non-lease component on the basis of their relative standalone prices. However, for leases of properties in which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate
non-lease components and will instead account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease
component.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)
(f)

Leases (Cont’d)
(ii)

Recognition and initial measurement
(a)

As a lessee

	The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.
	The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the respective Group entities’ incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group
entities use their incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.
	Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
•
•
•
•
•

fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments less any incentives receivable;
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date;
amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee;
the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise; and
penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to terminate
early.

	The Group excludes variable lease payments that are linked to future performance or usage of the
underlying asset from the lease liability. Instead, these payments are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the performance or use occurs.
	The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
(b)

As a lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease
or an operating lease.

	To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the
case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease.
If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Group applies MFRS 15 to allocate
the consideration in the contract based on the stand-alone selling prices.
When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease
separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sublease with reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Group applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sublease as an
operating lease.

70

EP MANUFACTURING BHD [Registration No. 199601017765 (390116-T )]

Notes to the Financial Statements
(Cont’d)

2.

Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)
(f)

Leases (Cont’d)
(iii)

Subsequent measurement
(a)

As a lessee

	The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of
the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as
those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.
	The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there
is a revision of in-substance fixed lease payments, or if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of
the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
has been reduced to zero.
(b)

As a lessor

	The Group recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term as part of “revenue”.
(g)

Intangible assets
(i)

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on business combinations is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

(ii)

Research and development

	Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical
knowledge and understanding, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
	Expenditure on development activities, whereby the application of research findings are applied to a plan
or design for the production of new or substantially improved products and processes, is capitalised only if
development costs can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible,
future economic benefits are probable and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete
development and to use or sell the asset.
	The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and overheads costs that are directly
attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use. For qualifying assets, borrowing costs are capitalised
in accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing costs. Other development expenditure is recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.
Capitalised development expenditure is measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.
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Significant accounting policies (Cont’d)
(g)

Intangible assets (Cont’d)
(iii)

Other intangible assets
Intangible assets, other than goodwill, that are acquired by the Group, which have finite useful lives, are
measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

(iv)

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill,
is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

(v)

Amortisation
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised but are tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

	Other intangible assets are amortised from the date that they are available for use. Amortisation is based
on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets.
	The estimated useful life for the current and comparative periods is as follows:
•

Capitalised development costs

3 - 5 years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
adjusted, if appropriate.
(h)

Investment properties
Investment properties carried at cost
Investment properties are properties which are owned to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both,
but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Properties that are occupied by the companies in the Group are accounted for as owneroccupied rather than investment properties.
Investment properties are initially and subsequently measured at cost are accounted for similarly to property, plant
and equipment.

(i)

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

	The cost of inventories is calculated using the weighted average method, and includes expenditure incurred in
acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing
location and condition. In the case of work-in-progress and finished goods, cost includes an appropriate share of
production overheads based on normal operating capacity.
	Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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(j)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances and deposits with banks which have an insignificant
risk of changes in fair value with original maturities of three months or less, and are used by the Group and the
Company in the management of their short term commitments. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts and pledged deposits.

(k)

Impairment
(i)

Financial assets

	The Group and the Company recognise loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets
measured at amortised cost. Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
	The Group and the Company measure loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss,
except for debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date, cash and bank
balances and other debt securities for which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
which are measured at 12-month expected credit loss. Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss.
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit loss, the Group and the Company consider reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking information, where available.
	Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of the asset, while 12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. The
maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period
over which the Group and the Company are exposed to credit risk.
	The Group and the Company estimate the expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision
matrix with reference to historical credit loss experience.
An impairment loss in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost is recognised in profit or loss
and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
At each reporting date, the Group and the Company assess whether financial assets carried at amortised
cost are credit impaired. A financial asset is credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
	The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or fully) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group or the Company determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s or the Company’s procedures for recovery of the
amounts due.
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(k)

Impairment (Cont’d)
(ii)

Other assets

	The carrying amounts of other assets (except for inventories and deferred tax assets) are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each period
at the same time.
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
cash-generating units. Subject to an operating segment ceiling test, for the purpose of goodwill impairment
testing, cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so that the level at
which impairment testing is performed reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
reporting purposes. The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of impairment testing,
is allocated to a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination.
	The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating unit exceeds
its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the cashgenerating unit (groups of cash-generating units) on a pro rata basis.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses
recognised in prior periods are assessed at the end of each reporting period for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. An impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the financial year in which the reversals are
recognised.
(l)

Equity instruments
Instruments classified as equity are measured at cost on initial recognition and are not remeasured subsequently.
(i)

Issue expenses
Costs directly attributable to the issue of instruments classified as equity are recognised as a deduction from
equity.
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(l)

Equity instruments (Cont’d)
(ii)

Ordinary shares

	Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
(iii)

Repurchase, disposal and reissue of share capital (treasury shares)
When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, including
directly attributable costs, net of any tax effects, is recognised as a deduction from equity. Repurchased
shares that are not subsequently cancelled are classified as treasury shares in the statement of changes in
equity.
When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the difference between the sales consideration net
of directly attributable costs and the carrying amount of the treasury shares is recognised in equity.

(m)

Employee benefits
(i)

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and sick
leave are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.
A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing
plans if the Group and the Company have a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii)

State plans

	The Group’s and the Company’s contributions to statutory pension funds are charged to profit or loss in the
financial year to which they relate. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in future payments is available.
(n)

Provisions
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised as finance cost.
Warranties
A provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying products or services are sold. The provision is based
on historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes against their associated probabilities.
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(o)

Revenue and other income
(i)

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The
Group or the Company recognises revenue when (or as) it transfers control over a product or service to
customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of the asset.

	The Group or the Company transfers control of a good or service at a point in time unless one of the following
over time criteria is met:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(ii)

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided as the Group or the Company
performs;
the Group’s or the Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the asset is created or enhanced; or
the Group’s or the Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use and the
Group or the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

Rental income
Rental income from investment property is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

(iii)

Government grants
Government grants are recognised initially as deferred income at fair value when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions associated with the grant; they
are then recognised in profit or loss as other income on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss as other income
on a systematic basis in the same period in which the expenses are recognised.

(iv)

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date that the Group’s or the Company’s right to receive
payment is established, which in the case of quoted securities is the ex-dividend date.

(v)

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method in profit or loss except for
interest income arising from temporary investment of borrowings taken specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset which is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy on borrowing costs.
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(p)

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets.

	The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted
or completed.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
(q)

Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or items recognised directly in equity or other
comprehensive income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous financial years.
Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position and their tax bases. Deferred tax is not
recognised for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

	The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different
tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities
will be realised simultaneously.
A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
	Unutilised reinvestment allowance and investment tax allowance, being tax incentives that are not a tax base of
an asset, are recognised as a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the unutilised tax incentive can be utilised.
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(r)

Earnings per ordinary share

	The Group presents basic earnings per share data for its ordinary shares (“EPS”).
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares held.
	No diluted EPS is disclosed in these financial statements as there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares.
(s)

Operating segments
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s
other components. Operating segment results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision maker, which
in this case is the Executive Chairman of the Group, to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

(t)

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is not recognised in the statements of financial position and is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(u)

Fair value measurements
Fair value of an asset or a liability, except for lease transactions, is determined as the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market.
For non-financial asset, the fair value measurement takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible.
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:
Level 1:
Level 2:
Level 3:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access
at the measurement date.
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.
unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

	The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfers.

78

EP MANUFACTURING BHD [Registration No. 199601017765 (390116-T )]

Annual Report 2020

79

3.

70,263

31,922

–
–
1,306
–

–
–
140
–
154,857

30,532
84

154,655
62

716,300

–
–
8,067
–

707,251
982

24,815

–
–
–
–

24,675
140

2,866

–
–
–
1,227

1,474
165

5,402

471
(507)
(9,513)
–

7,030
7,921

1,006,425

471
(507)
–
1,227

995,880
9,354

137
(6,677)
(2)
–
24,979
(209)

961,826
15,826

Total
RM’000

			

–

27,615

19,552

576,985

6,486

793

–

631,431

Depreciation and impairment
loss									
At 1 January 2019									
Accumulated depreciation		
–
27,615
19,552
567,645
6,486
793
–
622,091
Accumulated impairment loss		–
–
–
9,340
–
–
–
9,340

At 31 December 2020		

At 31 December 2019/
1 January 2020		 70,263
Additions		 –
Borrowing costs capitalised at
5% per annum		–
Write-off		–
Transfers		–
Transfer from right-of-use assets
4
–

Cost									
At 1 January 2019		
70,263
153,078
30,027
681,645
24,606
964
1,243
Additions		
–
26
502
5,356
69
573
9,300
Borrowing costs capitalised at
5% per annum		–
–
–
–
–
–
137
Disposals		–
–
(69)
(6,608)
–
–
–
Write-off		–
–
(2)
–
–
–
–
Transfers		
–
1,551
74
1,879
–
(63)
(3,441)
Transfer from right-of-use assets
4
–
–
–
24,979
–
–
–
Transfer to intangible assets
6
–
–
–
–
–
–
(209)

				
Buildings Equipment,				
Capital
			
Freehold
and
furniture
Plant and		
Motor
work-in			
land renovation and fittings machineries
Solar
vehicles
progress
Group		
Note
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

Property, plant and equipment
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681,892
9,340

43,907
(1,306)
(1)
–
17,201

Total
RM’000

118,992

6,646

58,917

15,858

16,957

523

537

5,402

7,030

276,601

70,263

79,699

At 31 December 2020		

7,864

304,648

122,298

2,343

70,263

8,957

At 31 December 2019/1 January 2020		

657,383

330,395

25,276

Carrying amounts								
At 1 January 2019		
70,263
125,463
10,475
104,660
18,120
171
1,243

35,865

729,824

–

–

			

			
–
32,357
22,668
627,552
7,718
937
–
691,232
Depreciation for the year		
–
3,508
2,608
29,831
1,239
179
–
37,365
Transfer from right-of-use assets
4
–
–
–
–
–
1,227
–
1,227
At 31 December 2020									
Accumulated depreciation		
–
35,865
25,276
648,043
8,957
2,343
–
720,484
Accumulated impairment loss		–
–
–
9,340
–
–
–
9,340

Depreciation and impairment
loss (Cont’d)								
Depreciation for the year		
–
4,742
3,175
34,551
1,232
207
–
Disposals		–
–
(58)
(1,248)
–
–
–
Write-off		–
–
(1)
–
–
–
–
Transfers		–
–
–
63
–
(63)
–
Transfer from right-of-use assets
4
–
–
–
17,201
–
–
–
At 31 December 2019/ At
1 January 2020								
Accumulated depreciation		
–
32,357
22,668
618,212
7,718
937
–
Accumulated impairment loss		–
–
–
9,340
–
–
–

				
Buildings Equipment,				
Capital
			
Freehold
and
furniture
Plant and		
Motor
work-in			
land renovation and fittings machineries
Solar
vehicles
progress
Group (Cont’d)
Note
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

Notes to the Financial Statements
(Cont’d)

Notes to the Financial Statements
(Cont’d)

3.

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)
						
Equipment,
						
furniture
						
and fittings
Company					
RM’000
Cost
At 1 January 2019					
1,970
Additions					
48
Disposals					
(23)
At 31 December 2019/1 January 2020					
1,995
Additions					
17
At 31 December 2020					

2,012

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2019					
975
Depreciation for the year					
304
Disposals					
(23)
At 31 December 2019/1 January 2020					
Depreciation for the year					

1,256
299

At 31 December 2020					

1,555

Carrying amounts
At 1 January 2019					

995

At 31 December 2019/1 January 2020					

739

At 31 December 2020					

457

3.1

Security
At 31 December 2020, land, buildings and plant and machineries with net carrying amount of RM167,535,000 (2019:
RM173,752,000) are charged to secure bank loans granted to the Group and RM39,693,000 (2019: RM40,490,000)
are subject to negative pledge for banking facilities granted to the Group (see Note 15).

3.2

Leased motor vehicles
At 31 December 2020, the net carrying amount of leased motor vehicles are RM520,000 (2019: RM492,000).

3.3

Capital work-in-progress
At 31 December 2020, the work-in-progress mainly relates to a new project of the subsidiary, Peps-JV (Melaka)
Sdn. Bhd., for which production is expected to commence in 2021.
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4.

Right-of-use assets
				
			 Buildings
Group
Note
RM’000

Motor
vehicle
RM’000

Machineries
RM’000

Total
RM’000

At 1 January 2019		
3,473
Remeasurement		690
Depreciation		 (1,373)
Transfer to property, plant
and equipment
3
–

251
–
(201)

12,144
–
(4,366)

15,868
690
(5,940)

–

(7,778)

(7,778)

At 31 December 2019/1 January 2020		
2,790
Remeasurement		605
Depreciation		(1,217)

50
–
(50)

–
–
–

2,840
605
(1,267)

–

–

2,178

At 31 December 2020		

2,178

	The Group leases a number of factories and warehouses that run between 1 and 2 years, with an option to renew the
lease after that expiry date.
	Leased motor vehicles which have been fully settled during the financial year were transferred to property, plant and
equipment (see Note 3).
4.1

Significant judgements and assumptions in relation to leases

	The Group assesses at lease commencement by applying significant judgement whether it is reasonably certain
to exercise the extension options. Group entities consider all facts and circumstances including their past practice
and any cost that will be incurred to change the asset if an option to extend is not taken, to help them determine
the lease term.
	The Group also applied judgement and assumptions in determining the incremental borrowing rate of the respective
leases. Group entities first determine the closest available borrowing rates before using significant judgement to
determine the adjustments required to reflect the term, security, value or economic environment of the respective
leases.
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5.

Investment properties
						
Freehold
						
land
Group					
RM’000
Cost		
At 1 January 2019/31 December 2019/1 January 2020/31 December 2020			

14,417

Accumulated depreciation		
At 1 January 2019/31 December 2019/1 January 2020/31 December 2020			

–

Carrying amounts		
At 1 January 2019					

14,417

At 31 December 2019/1 January 2020					

14,417

At 31 December 2020					

14,417

		
						
Level 3
						
RM’000
Fair value		
At 1 January 2019					

14,937

At 31 December 2019/1 January 2020					

14,937

At 31 December 2020					

14,937

Investment properties of the Group comprise three parcels of freehold land to facilitate future business plan. The three
parcels of land are charged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (see Note 15).
Fair value information
Level 3 fair value
Level 3 fair value is estimated using unobservable inputs for the investment properties.
	The Directors estimate the fair values of the Group’s investment properties without involvement of independent valuers.
The fair values are based on best available market values, being the estimated amount for which a property could be
exchanged between a willing buyer and a willing seller. The significant unobservable input includes price per square feet
of comparable properties.
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5.

Investment properties (Cont’d)
					
Buildings
				
Freehold
(inclusive of
				
land
renovation)
Company			RM’000
RM’000

Total
RM’000

Cost 		
At 1 January 2019			
21,500
Additions			 –

29,504
17

51,004
17

At 31 December 2019/1 January 2020			
21,500
Additions			–

29,521
–

51,021
–

At 31 December 2020			

21,500

29,521

51,021

			
Accumulated depreciation			
At 1 January 2019			
–
Depreciation for the year			
–

4,634
797

4,634
797

At 31 December 2019/1 January 2020			
Depreciation for the year			

–
–

5,431
797

5,431
797

At 31 December 2020			

–

6,228

6,228

			
Carrying amounts			
At 1 January 2019			
21,500

24,870

46,370

At 31 December 2019/1 January 2020			

21,500

24,090

45,590

At 31 December 2020			

21,500

23,293

44,793

						
Level 3
						
RM’000

84

Fair value			
At 1 January 2019					

66,911

At 31 December 2019/1 January 2020					

67,753

At 31 December 2020					

67,753
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5.

Investment properties (Cont’d)
Investment properties of the Company comprise freehold land and buildings that are leased to companies within the
Group to earn rental income. These are accounted for as property, plant and equipment at the Group level.
Investment properties of the Company amounting to RM44,793,000 (2019: RM45,590,000) are subject to negative pledge
for banking facilities granted to the Group (see Note 15).

	The following are recognised in profit or loss:
Group
		2020
		RM’000
Lease income		1,292
Direct operating expenses
- Income generating investment
  properties		
47

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
RM’000

2019
RM’000

1,406

2,113

2,228

47

158

162

Fair value information
Level 3 fair value
Level 3 fair value is estimated using unobservable inputs for the investment properties.
	The Directors estimate the fair values of the Company’s investment properties without involvement of independent valuers.
The fair values are based on best available market values, being the estimated amount for which a property could be
exchanged between a willing buyer and a willing seller. The significant unobservable input includes price per square feet
of comparable properties.

6.

Intangible assets
					
Capitalised
				
Goodwill on
development
				consolidation
costs
Group		 Note
RM’000
RM’000

Total
RM’000

Cost 			
At 1 January 2019			
84,544
Additions			 –
Transfer from property, plant and equipment
3
–

35,792
527
209

120,336
527
209

At 31 December 2019/1 January 2020			
84,544
Additions			 –

36,528
35

121,072
35

At 31 December 2020			

36,563

121,107

84,544
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6.

Intangible assets (cont’d)
					
Capitalised
				
Goodwill on
development
				consolidation
costs
Group (Cont’d)			RM’000
RM’000

Total
RM’000

Amortisation and impairment loss				
At 1 January 2019			
–
33,570
Amortisation for the year			
–
1,645
Impairment loss			109
–

33,570
1,645
109

At 31 December 2019/1 January 2020				
Accumulated amortisation			
–
Accumulated impairment loss			
109

35,215
–

35,215
109

				 109
Amortisation for the year			
–
At 31 December 2020				
Accumulated amortisation			
–
Accumulated impairment loss			
109

35,215
705

35,324
705

35,920
–

35,920
109

				

35,920

36,029

				
Carrying amounts				
At 1 January 2019			
84,544
2,222

86,766

At 31 December 2019/1 January 2020			

84,435

1,313

85,748

At 31 December 2020			

84,435

643

85,078

6.1

109

Impairment testing for cash-generating units containing goodwill
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group’s operating divisions which represent
the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

	The aggregate carrying amounts of goodwill are allocated as follows:
		Group
					2020
					RM’000
Automotive				84,435

2019
RM’000
84,435

	The recoverable amount has been estimated based on value in use, determined by discounting future cash flows
to be generated by the automotive unit. It is supported by business plan projections which include new model
replacements as well as project collaboration with third parties. Such business plan projections are based on
award of contracts to manufacture several components for the new automotive models as well as letter of intent
to develop and to supply certain modules.
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6.

Intangible assets (cont’d)
6.1

Impairment testing for cash-generating units containing goodwill (Cont’d)
Value in use of the intangible assets was determined by discounting the future cash flows expected to be generated
from the automotive unit and was based on the following key assumptions:
•

Cash flows were projected based on past experience, actual operating results and the 5-year business plan.
Cash flows for the automotive unit were extrapolated using a constant growth rate of 2% (2019: 2%), which
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate of the industry. Management believes that the projected
period was justified due to the long-term nature of the automotive business.

•

Projected revenue for the next 5 years up to 2025 were based on an average growth rate of 1% to 33%
(2019: 0.5% to 4%) per annum.

•

Projected cost of sales for the next 5 years up to 2025 were based on an expected increase of approximately
0.5% to 27% (2019: 0% to 2.5%) per annum.

•

A pre-tax discount rate of 10% (2019: 10%) was applied in determining the recoverable amount of the
automotive unit. The discount rate was estimated based on the industry average weighted average cost of
capital. The Directors consider this to be a prudent estimate of the cost of capital of the Group, taking into
account the current macro-economic situation.

	The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the automotive
industry and are based on both external sources and internal sources (historical data). Based on the above, the
recoverable amount of the unit was determined to be higher than its carrying amount and therefore, no impairment
loss was recognised.
	The estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying amount by approximately RM146,187,000
(2019: RM78,644,000). Management has identified that a reasonably possible change in one key assumption could
cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount. The following table shows the amount by which the
assumption would need to change individually for the estimated recoverable amount to be equal to the carrying
amount.
		
Changes required for
		
carrying amount to
		
equal recoverable
		amount
In percent				2020
2019
Pre-tax discount rate				

4.0
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7.

Investments in subsidiaries

		Company
				Note
2020
					RM’000
Cost of investment				
Capital contribution			
7.1
Less: Impairment loss				

2019
RM’000

203,673
13,086
(6,330)

203,673
13,086
(6,330)

					210,429

210,429

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:
							 Effective
							 ownership
							 interest
							 and voting
		
Principal place			
interest
Name of entity
of business
Principal activities
2020		2019
				
%		%
Peps-JV (M)
Malaysia
Manufacturing of metal based automotive
Sdn. Bhd.		  components such as inner body panels
			  and assemblies, chassis panels and
			  assemblies, corner modules, real axle
			  modules and fuel tank modules

88

100		

100

EP Polymers (M)
Malaysia
Manufacturing of engineering plastic
100		
Sdn. Bhd. 		  based automotive components such as
			  engine air intake manifold, fuel rail
			  assemblies and automotive accessories
			 parts
				
Fundwin
Malaysia
Distribution of automotive parts
100		
Sdn. Bhd.				

100

Peps-JV (Kedah)
Malaysia
Manufacturing of metal based automotive
Sdn. Bhd.		  components such as inner body
			  assemblies and chassis assemblies

100		

100

Advance Product
Malaysia
Dormant
100		
Systems
Sdn. Bhd.				

100

EP Moulds &
Malaysia
Dormant
Dies (M)
Sdn. Bhd.
				
Peps-JV (Gurun)
Malaysia
Dormant
Sdn. Bhd.

100

100

100		

100
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7.

Investments in subsidiaries (cont’d)
Details of the subsidiaries are as follows (Cont’d):
							 Effective
							 ownership
							 interest
							 and voting
		
Principal place			
interest
Name of entity
of business
Principal activities
2020		2019
				
%		%
Held by Peps-JV
(M) Sdn. Bhd.				
				
Peps-JV (Melaka)
Malaysia
Manufacturing of metal based automotive
100		
Sdn. Bhd. 		  components such as inner body
			  assemblies and chassis assemblies
Held by Peps-JV
(Kedah)
Sdn. Bhd.				
				
PT EP Metering &
Indonesia
Dormant
90
Services (1), (2)
and its
subsidiary
				
PT Tirta Serang
Indonesia
Dormant
81		
Madani (1), (2)

100

90

81

	Not audited by member firms of KPMG International.

(1)

(2)

Consolidated using management accounts as at 31 December 2020.

7.1

Capital contribution
Capital contribution relates to advances to its subsidiary whereby repayments of the amount is neither fixed nor
expected in the short term.
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7.

Investments in subsidiaries (cont’d)
7.2

Non-controlling interest in subsidiaries

	The Group’s subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests (“NCI”) are as follows:
				
PT EP
				 Metering
				
& Services
				RM’000

PT Tirta
Serang
Madani
RM’000

Total
RM’000

2020 		
NCI percentage of ownership
interest and voting interest		
10%
Carrying amount of NCI			
(252)

19%
–

(252)

–

–

–

			
Summarised financial information
before intra-group elimination			
			
As at 31 December			
Non-current assets			–
Current assets			
120
Current liabilities			
(2,635)

–
–
–

Net liabilities			

(2,515)

–

			
Year ended 31 December			
Revenue			–
Profit for the year			
–
Total comprehensive income			
–

–
5
5

			
Cash flows generated from operating activities		

–

5

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents		

–

5

			
Loss allocated to NCI			

90
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7.

Investments in subsidiaries (cont’d)
7.2

Non-controlling interest in subsidiaries (Cont’d)

	The Group’s subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests (“NCI”) are as follows (Cont’d):
				
PT EP
				 Metering
				
& Services
				RM’000

PT Tirta
Serang
Madani
RM’000

Total
RM’000

2019
NCI percentage of ownership
interest and voting interest			

10%

19%

Carrying amount of NCI			

112

(616)

(504)

Loss allocated to NCI			

–

–

–

			
Summarised financial information
before intra-group elimination 		
			
As at 31 December			
Non-current assets			
324
Current assets			
3,427
Current liabilities			
(2,635)

–
41
(3,281)

Net assets/(liabilities)			

1,116

(3,240)

			
Year ended 31 December			
Revenue			–
Loss for the year			
–
Total comprehensive expense			
–

–
–
–

			
Cash flows used in operating activities		

–

–

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents		

–

–
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8.

Investment in a joint venture

		Group
					2020
					RM’000

2019
RM’000

At cost			
 Unquoted shares				60
Share of post-acquisition reserves 				
312

60
442

					372

502

Details of the joint venture are as follows:
							 Effective
							 ownership
							 interest
							 and voting
		
Principal place			
interest
Name of entity
of business
Principal activity
2020		2019
				
%		%
Peps Y-Tec
(Malaysia)
Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

Distribution of automotive parts

60		

60

	The following table summarises the financial information of Peps Y-Tec (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.. The table also reconciles
the summarised financial information to the carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Peps Y-Tec (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.,
which is accounted for using equity method.
		Group
					2020
					RM’000

92

2019
RM’000

Summarised financial information			
As at 31 December			
Current assets (excluding cash and cash equivalents)			
4,616
Cash and cash equivalents				
4,901
Current liabilities				
(8,897)

7,170
1,416
(7,749)

Net assets				620

837

Group’s share of net assets				

502
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8.

Investment in a joint venture (Cont’d)

		Group
					2020
					RM’000
Year ended 31 December			
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 			

1,526

3,295

Group’s share of profit and total comprehensive income			

915

1,977

Included in profit and total comprehensive income are:			
Revenue				28,444
Income tax expense				
(484)

52,654
(1,040)

			
Other information			
Cash dividends received by the Group				

9.

2019
RM’000

1,045

2,426

Deferred tax assets and liabilities
Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:
		
		
Group
Property, plant
and equipment
Unabsorbed capital
allowances
Provisions
Others
Tax assets/(liabilities)

Assets
2020
RM’000

2019
RM’000

Liabilities
2020
2019
RM’000
RM’000

Net
2020
RM’000

2019
RM’000

3,811

3,706

(4,496)

(4,343)

(685)

(637)

1,253
197
(205)

1,253
372
(298)

–
–
–

–
–
–

1,253
197
(205)

1,253
372
(298)

5,056

5,033

(4,496)

(4,343)

560

690

								
Company
Property, plant
and equipment
–
–
(4,496)
(4,343)
(4,496)
(4,343)
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9.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities (Cont’d)
Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items (stated at gross):

		Group
					2020
					RM’000

2019
RM’000

Property, plant and equipment				
(25,326)
Provisions				4,218
Unabsorbed capital allowances				
98,854
Unutilised investment tax allowances				
31,156
Unutilised reinvestment allowances				
8,301
Unutilised tax losses				
871
Other (taxable)/deductible temporary differences			
(217)

(28,819)
4,782
113,214
31,156
8,301
1,715
147

					117,857

130,496

	The ability to carry forward unutilised tax losses and unutilised reinvestment allowances will be limited to 7 years of
assessment while unabsorbed capital allowances and unutilised investment tax allowances do not expire under current
tax legislation. Deferred tax assets in respect of the above items, have not been recognised because it is not probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the Group can utilise the benefits thereon.
Movement in temporary differences during the year
			Recognised		Recognised
			
in profit
At
in profit
		
At
or loss
31.12.2019/
or loss
		
1.1.2019
(Note 22)
1.1.2020
(Note 22)
		
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

At
31.12.2020
RM’000

Group					
Property, plant and equipment
123
(760)
(637)
(48)
(685)
Tax loss carry-forwards
99
(99)
–
–
–
Unabsorbed capital allowances
–
1,253
1,253
–
1,253
Provisions
598
(226)
372
(175)
197
Others
(302)
4
(298)
93
(205)
		

518

172

690

(130)

560

					
Company					
Property, plant and equipment
(4,189)
(154)
(4,343)
(153)
(4,496)
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10.

Inventories

		Group
					2020
					RM’000

2019
RM’000

Raw materials				31,011
Work-in-progress				4,932
Finished goods				7,681

43,652
4,162
7,493

					43,624

55,307

				
Recognised in profit or loss:				
Inventories recognised as cost of sales				
Inventories written off				
Reversal of write-down to net realisable value			

352,758
8,019
(234)

403,817
5,186
(437)

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
RM’000

2019
RM’000

74,223
8,491

–
–

–
–

11

–

–

82,725

–

–

The write-down and reversal are included in cost of sales.

11.

Trade and other receivables

Group
Note
2020
		RM’000
Trade
Trade receivables		60,239
Amount due from a joint venture
11.1
8,695
Amount due from an affiliated
company
11.1
21
			68,955
Non-trade
Amounts due from subsidiaries
11.2
Amount due from an affiliated
company
11.3
Other receivables		

–

–

19,723

12,035

56
518

67
2,204

–
3

–
14

			

574

2,271

19,726

12,049

			69,529

84,996

19,726

12,049
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11.

Trade and other receivables (Cont’d)
11.1 Amounts due from a joint venture and an affiliated company – trade
	The trade amounts due from a joint venture and an affiliated company, are unsecured and subject to normal trade
terms.
11.2 Amounts due from subsidiaries – non-trade
	The non-trade amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, subject to interest at 3.15% (2019: 3.15%) per annum
and repayable on demand.
11.3 Amount due from an affiliated company – non-trade
	The non-trade amount due from an affiliated company is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

12.

Other investments
Other investments are deposits with licensed banks that are placed for a period of more than 3 months.

		Group
					2020
					RM’000
Deposits placed with licensed banks				

–

2019
RM’000
1,428

Deposits placed with licensed banks in the previous financial year were pledged for certain bank facilities granted to the
Group and the Company (see Note 15).

13.

Cash and cash equivalents

Group
		2020
		RM’000
Deposits placed with licensed banks		
Cash and bank balances		

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
RM’000

2019
RM’000

2,575
27,136

2,517
21,898

–
287

–
401

Cash and cash equivalents in the
statements of financial position		29,711
Pledged deposits		
(2,575)
Bank overdraft		
(9,806)

24,415
(2,517)
(9,599)

287
–
–

401
–
–

Cash and cash equivalents in the
statements of cash flows		17,330

12,299

287

401

Included in the Group’s deposits placed with licensed banks are RM2,575,000 (2019: RM2,517,000) which are pledged
for certain banking facilities granted to the Group and the Company (see Note 15).
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14.

Capital and reserves
14.1 Share capital
		
Group and Company
			Number		Number
			
of shares
Amount
of shares
			
2020
2020
2019
			
’000
RM’000
’000

Amount
2019
RM’000

Issued and fully paid shares
with no par value classified
as equity instruments:
 Ordinary shares
  
At 1 January/31 December		165,960

180,029

180,029

165,960

							
Ordinary shares
	The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to one
vote per share at meetings of the Company. In respect of the Company’s treasury shares that are held by the Group, all
rights are suspended until those shares are reissued.
14.2 Treasury shares
	Treasury shares comprises cost of acquisition of the Company’s own shares.
	The owners of the Company, by an ordinary resolution passed in an Annual General Meeting held on 21 July 2020,
approved the Company’s plan to repurchase its own shares.
During the financial year, the Company repurchased 386,200 (2019: 261,600) of its issued ordinary shares (“EP
Shares”) from the open market at an average buy-back price of RM0.29 (2019: RM0.37) per ordinary share. The
total consideration paid for the share buy-back of EP Shares by the Company during the financial year was
RM112,000 (2019: RM98,000). The repurchase transaction was financed by internally generated funds. The EP
Shares repurchased were retained as treasury shares.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group held 7,958,800 (2019: 7,572,600) EP Shares as treasury shares out of its total
issued and paid-up share capital. As at 31 December 2020, the number of shares in issue and paid-up, net of
treasury shares is therefore 158,001,200 (2019: 158,387,400) ordinary shares.
	None of the treasury shares held were resold or cancelled during the financial year. While the shares are held as
treasury shares, the rights attached to them such as voting, dividends and participation in other distribution and
otherwise are suspended.
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15.

Loans and borrowings

		Group
				Note
2020
					RM’000

2019
RM’000

Non-current				
Term loans			 15.1
27,027
Other bank facilities				
296

31,649
296

					27,323

31,945

Current				
Term loans			 15.1
20,488
Bankers’ acceptances			
15.1
99,790
Revolving credit			 15.1
25,000
Bank overdraft			 15.1
9,806
Other bank facilities				
126

22,511
131,951
25,000
9,599
96

					155,210

189,157

					182,533

221,102

15.1 Security
Group
Term loans
The term loans are secured and supported by way of:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)

corporate guarantee issued by the Company for the repayment by the subsidiaries of the loan, interest
thereon and all other sums payable;
first fixed charge over certain Group’s machineries (see Note 3);
first party first and second legal charge on the lands owned by certain subsidiaries (see Note 3 and Note 5)
and over certain Group’s machineries;
pledge of fixed deposit by the subsidiaries (see Note 12* and Note 13);
specific Deed of Assignment of contract proceeds; and
specific debenture over equipment financed*.

* 	These were related to term loans which have been fully settled during the financial year.
Bankers’ acceptances, bank overdraft and revolving credit
The bankers’ acceptances, bank overdraft and revolving credit are secured and supported by way of:
a)		first party legal charge on the lands owned by the Company;
b)
third party first legal charge on the lands owned by a subsidiary;
c)
corporate guarantee issued by the Company and certain subsidiaries; and
d)
negative pledge from the Company and certain subsidiaries.
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15.

Loans and borrowings (cont’d)
15.1 Security (Cont’d)
Group (Cont’d)
Significant financial covenant for certain term loans granted is as follows:
•
•
•
#

dividend shall not be declared by certain subsidiaries without prior consent from the loan provider;
gearing ratio of the Company shall not exceed 1.5 times#; and
debt service cover ratio for a subsidiary shall be no less than 1.5 times for the preceding year#.
	These were related to a term loan which has been fully settled during the financial year.

Significant financial covenant for bankers’ acceptances granted are as follows:
•
•
•

16.

gearing ratio of the Company shall not exceed 1.5 times;
debt service cover ratio for a subsidiary shall be no less than 1.5 times for the preceding year; and
adjusted current ratio of a subsidiary shall be no less than 1.0 time.

Deferred income

		Group
					2020
					RM’000

2019
RM’000

Non-current				
Government grant				2,387
				
Current
Government grant				189
					2,576

2,576
189
2,765

In the previous financial years, the Group received a government grant upon the construction of solar panels on a factory
site. During the financial year, RM189,000 (2019: RM187,000) has been amortised and recognised as other income in
profit or loss.
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17.

Provision for warranties

		Group
					2020
					RM’000

2019
RM’000

At 1 January				
Provision made during the year				
Provision reversed during the year				
Provision used during the year				

1,170
151
(1,143)
(86)

1,056
292
(70)
(108)

At 31 December				

92

1,170

	The Group provides warranties on certain automotive parts and materials sold, and undertake to repair or replace items
that fail to perform to a satisfactory level or meet the specification required. The provision for warranties is based on
estimates made from historical warranty data.

18.

Trade and other payables

Group
Note
2020
		RM’000

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
RM’000

Trade
Trade payables		73,141
Amount due to an affiliated company 18.1
3,289
Amount due to a joint venture
18.1
250

62,334
5,233
3,311

–
–
–

–
–
–

			76,680

70,878

–

–

Non-trade
Amounts due to subsidiaries
18.2
–
Amount due to an affiliated company 18.3
–
Other payables
18.4
11,783
Accrued expenses		8,220

–
4
12,206
6,265

37,976
–
448
122

31,970
318
129

			20,003

18,475

38,546

32,417

			96,683

89,353

38,546

32,417

2019
RM’000

18.1 Amounts due to an affiliated company and a joint venture – trade
The trade amounts due to an affiliated company and a joint venture, are unsecured and subject to normal trade terms.
18.2 Amounts due to subsidiaries – non-trade
	The non-trade amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, subject to interest at 3.15% (2019: 3.15%) per annum
and repayable on demand.
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18.

Trade and other payables (Cont’d)
18.3 Amount due to an affiliated company – non-trade
The non-trade amount due to an affiliated company is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
18.4 Other payables
Included in other payables are amounts due to suppliers of RM2,335,000 (2019: RM1,271,000) in respect of capital
expenditure incurred, of which RM407,000 relates to balances brought forward from prior year.

19.

Revenue

Group
		2020
		RM’000

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
RM’000

Revenue from contracts with customers		407,872

483,540

–

–

Other revenue
Dividend income		
–
Rental income		 995
Management fees		 –

–
1,110
–

1,500
2,113
526

8,000
2,228
625

			 995

1,110

4,139

10,853

Total revenue		408,867

484,650

4,139

10,853

2019
RM’000

19.1 Disaggregation of revenue
Group
		2020
		RM’000

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
RM’000

2019
RM’000

Primary geographical markets
Malaysia		399,046
Saudi Arabia		
9,821

469,536
15,114

4,139
–

10,853
–

			408,867

484,650

4,139

10,853

							
Major products and service lines
Automotive components		405,299
480,804
–
–
Solar		2,573
2,736
–
–
 Other revenue		 995
1,110
4,139
10,853
			408,867

484,650

4,139

10,853

							
Timing and recognition
At a point in time		
408,867
484,650
4,139
10,853
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19.

Revenue (Cont’d)

19.1 Disaggregation of revenue (Cont’d)
					
	The Group applies practical expedients exemption on disclosure of information on remaining performance obligation
that have original expected durations of one year or less.
19.2 Nature of goods
Nature of
goods

Timing of recognition or method used Significant
to recognise revenue
payment terms

Automotive

Revenue is recognised at a point in time Credit period of 30 to For certain subsidiaries,
60 days from invoice
assurance warranties of
when the goods are delivered and
date.
2 to 3 years are given to
accepted by the customers at their
customers.
premises.

Solar

Revenue is recognised at a point in Credit period of 30 No warranty provided.
days from invoice
time when the good is delivered and
date.
accepted by the customer at its premise.

Warranty

	The revenue from contracts with customers of the Group is not subject to variable element in the considerations
and obligation for returns or refunds.

20.

Finance costs

Group
		2020
		RM’000

102

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
RM’000

2019
RM’000

Interest expense of financial
liabilities that are not at fair
value through profit or loss:
- Amounts due to subsidiaries		
–
- Bankers’ acceptances		
4,245
- Term loans 		
2,086
- Bank overdraft		
564
- Revolving credit		
1,027
- Other bank facilities		
20
- Others		
1,250
Interest expense on lease liabilities		
158

–
5,854
4,614
816
1,312
20
910
259

543
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

698
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

			
9,350

13,785

543

698
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20.

Finance costs (cont’d)

Group
		2020
		RM’000

21.

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
RM’000

2019
RM’000

Recognised in profit or loss		
9,350
Interest expense of financial
liabilities that are not at fair value
through profit or loss capitalised
into qualifying assets:
- Property, plant and equipment
(Note 3)		471

13,785

543

698

137

–

–

			
9,821

13,922

543

698

(Loss)/Profit before tax

Group
Note
2020
		RM’000
(Loss)/Profit before tax is
arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
Auditors’ remuneration
- Audit fees
- KPMG in Malaysia		
392
- Non-audit fees
- KPMG in Malaysia		22
- Local affiliates of KPMG
  
in Malaysia		67

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
RM’000

2019
RM’000

392

94

94

22

22

22

71

11

11

Material expenses/(income)						
Amortisation of government grant
16
(189)
(187)
–
–
Amortisation of intangible assets
6
705
1,645
–
–
Bad debts written off		
1,349
–
–
–
Depreciation of investment
properties
5
–
–
797
797
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
3
37,365
43,907
299
304
Depreciation of right-of-use
assets
4
1,267
5,940
–
–
Dividend income from:
- Subsidiary 		
–
–
(1,500)
(8,000)
- Joint venture 		
(1,045)
(2,426)
–
–
Finance costs
20
9,350
13,785
543
698
Finance income 		 (220)
(286)
(429)
(384)
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment		
–
(43)
–
–
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21.

(Loss)/Profit before tax (Cont’d)

Group
Note
2020
		RM’000

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
RM’000

2019
RM’000

Material expenses/(income)
(Cont’d)
Gain on foreign exchange
- Realised		
81
(25)
–
–
- Unrealised		
231
(398)
–
–
Impairment loss on intangible
assets
6
–
109
–
–
Inventories written off
10
8,019
5,186
–
–
Loss on foreign exchange						
- Realised		108
690
–
–
- Unrealised		
37
183
–
–
Personnel expenses (including
key management personnel)
- Contributions to Employees
  Provident Fund		
2,200
2,976
42
44
- Wages, salaries and others		
30,641
40,377
880
773
Property, plant and equipment
written off
3
507
1
–
–
Provision for warranties
17
151
292
–
–
Rental income from investment
properties		 (1,292)
(1,406)
(2,113)
(2,228)
Reversal of inventories written
down
10
(234)
(437)
–
–
Reversal of provision for
warranties
17
(1,143)
(70)
–
–
Royalties		471
756
–
–
Expenses arising from leases
Expenses relating to short-term
leases		
890
Expenses relating to leases of
low-value assets		244

1,181

–

–

291

12

13

Net loss/(gain) on impairment of
financial instruments 						
Financial assets at amortised
cost
26.4
6
(92)
–
–
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22.

Tax expense
Recognised in profit or loss

Group
		2020
		RM’000
Tax expense on continuing
operations		1,537
Share of tax of equity-accounted
joint venture		289
Total tax expense		

1,826

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
RM’000

2019
RM’000

3,028

405

621

624

–

–

3,652

405

621

							
Current tax expense
- Current year		
1,444
3,402
256
477
- Prior years		
(37)
(202)
(4)
(10)
Total current tax recognised in
profit or loss		

1,407

3,200

252

467

							
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of
temporary differences		 236
(535)
153
154
(Over)/Under provision in prior year		
(106)
363
–
–
Total deferred tax recognised
in profit or loss		

130

(172)

153

154

Share of tax of equity-accounted
joint venture		289

624

–

–

3,652

405

621

Total tax expense		

1,826
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22.

Tax expense (Cont’d)
Reconciliation of tax expense

Group
		2020
		RM’000

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
RM’000

2019
RM’000

(Loss)/Profit for the year		
Total income tax expense		

(14,904)
1,826

(15,274)
3,652

462
405

7,001
621

(Loss)/Profit excluding tax 		

(13,078)

(11,622)

867

7,622

							
Income tax calculated using Malaysian
tax rate of 24% (2019: 24%)		
(3,139)
(2,789)
208
1,829
Non-deductible expenses		8,392
6,797
561
722
Tax exempt income		
(251)
–
(360)
(1,920)
Effect of unrecognised deferred
tax assets		
(3,033)
(517)
–
–

23.

			1,969
(Over)/Under provided in prior years
- Current tax expense		
(37)
- Deferred tax expense		
(106)

3,491

409

631

(202)
363

(4)
–

(10)
–

			1,826

3,652

405

621

Key management personnel compensations
The key management personnel compensations are as follows:

Group
		2020
		RM’000

2019
RM’000

2019
RM’000

Directors of the Company
- Fees		450
- Remuneration		1,246
- EPF contribution		
150

450
1,463
176

450
–
–

450
–
–

			1,846

2,089

450

450

Directors of subsidiaries
- Remuneration		577
- EPF contribution		
70

717
86

–
–

–
–

			647

803

–

–

			2,493

2,892

450

450

The estimated monetary value of Directors’ benefit-in-kind is RM13,000 (2019: RM34,000).
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24.

Loss per ordinary share
Basic loss per ordinary share

	The calculation of basic loss per ordinary share at 31 December 2020 was based on the loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders and a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, calculated as follows:
Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
		Group
					2020
					RM’000
Loss for the year attributable to ordinary shareholdings			

15,156

2019
RM’000
15,274

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
		Group
					2020
					’000
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January				
Effect of treasury shares held				

2019
’000

165,960
(7,781)

165,960
(7,484)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at
31 December				158,179

158,476

			
					Sen

Sen

Basic loss per ordinary share 				

9.6

9.6

Diluted loss per ordinary share
There is no diluted loss per ordinary share as there is no dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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25.

Operating segments
The Group operates under one main business segment which is Automotive.
Geographical segments
In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on geographical location of
customers. The non-current assets of the Group are located in Malaysia. Capital expenditure incurred is also in Malaysia.
The geographical information on revenue has been disclosed in Note 19.
Major customers
Four major customers (2019: four major customers) (including sub-contractors of these customers) of the Group contribute
97% (2019: 96%) to the total revenue of the Group.

		
Revenue		 Segment
			2020
2019		
			RM’000
RM’000		
All common control companies of:					
National car			
307,904
263,145
Non-national car			
86,995
202,065

26.

Automotive
Automotive

Financial instruments
26.1 Categories of financial instruments
The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categorised as amortised cost (“AC”).

2020
2019
		Carrying		Carrying
		amount
AC
amount
Group		RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

AC
RM’000

Financial assets						
Trade and other receivables		69,529
69,529
84,996
84,996
Other investments		
–
–
1,428
1,428
Cash and cash equivalents		29,711
29,711
24,415
24,415
			 99,240

99,240

110,839

110,839

Financial liabilities						
Loans and borrowings		 (182,533)
(182,533)
(221,102)
(221,102)
Trade and other payables		
(96,683)
(96,683)
(89,353)
(89,353)
			 (279,216)
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26.

Financial instruments (cont’d)
26.1 Categories of financial instruments (Cont’d)

2020
2019
		Carrying		Carrying
		amount
AC
amount
Company		RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

AC
RM’000

Financial assets						
Trade and other receivables		19,726
19,726
12,049
12,049
Cash and cash equivalents		287
287
401
401
			20,013

20,013

12,450

12,450

Financial liabilities						
Trade and other payables		
(38,546)
(38,546)
(32,417)
(32,417)
26.2 Net gains and losses arising from financial instruments
Group
		2020
		RM’000

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
RM’000

2019
RM’000

Net gains/(losses) on:						
Financial assets at amortised cost		
(1,177)
359
429
384
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
(8,983)
(13,940)
(543)
(698)
			
(10,160)

(13,581)

(114)

(314)

26.3 Financial risk management
	The Group and the Company have exposure to the following risks from their financial instruments:
•
•
•

Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk

26.4 Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from the individual characteristics of
each customer. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from loans and advances to subsidiaries
and financial guarantees given to banks for credit facilities granted to subsidiaries. There are no significant changes
as compared to prior years.
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26.

Financial instruments (cont’d)
26.4 Credit risk (Cont’d)
Trade receivables
Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether any of the trade receivables are credit impaired.
	The gross carrying amounts of credit impaired trade receivables are written off (either partially or fully) when there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off. Nevertheless, trade receivables that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities.
	There are no significant changes as compared to previous year.
Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral
As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables is
represented by the carrying amounts in the statement of financial position.
Concentration of credit risk
	The exposure of credit risk for trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period by geographic region was:

		Group
					2020
					RM’000

2019
RM’000

Malaysia				58,828
Saudi Arabia				1,411

71,613
2,610

					60,239

74,223

Recognition and measurement of impairment loss
In managing credit risk of trade receivables, the Group manages its debtors and takes appropriate actions (including
but not limited to legal actions) to recover long overdue balances. Generally, trade receivables will pay within 60
to 90 days according to the agreed credit terms. The Group’s debt recovery process is as follows:
a)
b)

Above 30 days past due after credit term, the Group will initiate conversation with the customer and rationale
the late payment; and
Above 90 days past due, the Group will initiate conversation with the customer and commence a legal
proceeding against the customer, if necessary.

	The Group uses an allowance matrix to measure expected credit losses (“ECLs”) of trade receivables. Consistent
with the debt recovery process, invoices which are past due 90 days will be considered as credit impaired.
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26.

Financial instruments (cont’d)
26.4 Credit risk (Cont’d)
Trade receivables (Cont’d)
Recognition and measurement of impairment loss (Cont’d)
	Loss rates are calculated using a ‘roll rate’ method based on the probability of a receivable progressing through
successive stages of delinquency to 90 days past due.
	Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over the past three years. The Group also considers
differences between (a) economic conditions during the period over which the historic data has been collected,
(b) current conditions and (c) the Group’s view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.
Nevertheless, the Group believes that these factors are immaterial for the purpose of impairment calculation for
the year.
	The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables.
				
Gross
				
carrying
				
amount
				RM’000

Loss
allowance
RM’000

Net
balance
RM’000

2020 				
Current (not past due) 			
57,360
(6)
1 – 30 days past due			
13
–
31 – 60 days past due			
2,019
–
61 – 90 days past due			
23
–

57,354
13
2,019
23

				
59,415
(6)
59,409
Credit impaired 					
More than 90 days past due 			
1,247
(417)
830
Individually impaired			
2
(2)
–
				

60,664

(425)

60,239

					
2019 				
Current (not past due) 			
71,812
(4)
1 – 30 days past due			
216
(4)
31 – 60 days past due			
138
(1)
61 – 90 days past due			
7
–

71,808
212
137
7

				
72,173
(9)
72,164
Credit impaired 					
More than 90 days past due 			
2,467
(408)
2,059
Individually impaired			
2
(2)
–
				

74,642

(419)

74,223
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26.

Financial instruments (cont’d)
26.4 Credit risk (Cont’d)
Trade receivables (Cont’d)
Recognition and measurement of impairment loss (Cont’d)
The movements in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year are shown below.

		

Trade receivables
				
Lifetime
Credit
				
ECL
impaired
				RM’000
RM’000

Total
RM’000

Balance at 1 January 2019			479
Amounts written off			
–
Net remeasurement of loss allowance		
(62)

49
(17)
(30)

528
(17)
(92)

Balance at 31 December 2019/1 January 2020		417
Net remeasurement of loss allowance		
6

2
–

419
6

Balance at 31 December 2020			423

2

425

Cash and cash equivalents
	The cash and cash equivalents are held with banks and financial institutions. As at the end of the reporting period,
the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amounts in the statement of financial position.
	These banks and financial institutions have low credit risks. In addition, some of the bank balances are insured by
government agencies. Consequently, the Group and the Company are of the view that the loss allowance is not
material and hence, it is not provided for.
Other receivables
Credit risks on other receivables are mainly arising from deposits paid for office buildings. These deposits will be
received at the end of each lease term. The Group manages the credit risk together with the leasing arrangement.
As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amounts
in the statement of financial position.
As at the end of the reporting period, there is no material impact on the allowance for impairment losses for other
receivables.
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26.

Financial instruments (cont’d)
26.4 Credit risk (Cont’d)
Financial guarantees
Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
	The Company provides unsecured financial guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries. The Company monitors the ability of the subsidiaries to service their loans on an individual basis.
Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral
	The maximum exposure to credit risk amounts to RM60,115,000 (2019: RM77,697,000) representing the outstanding
banking facilities of the subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period.
	The financial guarantees are provided as credit enhancements to the subsidiaries’ secured loans.
Recognition and measurement of impairment loss
	The Company assumes that there is a significant increase in credit risk when a subsidiary’s financial position
deteriorates significantly. The Company considers a financial guarantee to be credit impaired when:
•
•

The subsidiary is unlikely to repay its credit obligation to the bank in full; or
The subsidiary is continuously loss making and is having a deficit shareholders’ fund.

	The Company determines the probability of default of the guaranteed loans individually using internal information
available.
As at the end of the reporting period, there was no indication that any subsidiary would default on repayment and
hence no allowance for impairment losses was recognised by the Company.
Intercompany loans and advances
Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
	The Company provides unsecured loans and advances to wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Company monitors the
ability of the subsidiaries to repay the advances on an individual basis.
Exposure to credit risk, credit quality and collateral
As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amounts
in the statement of financial position.
	Loans and advances provided are not secured by any collateral or supported by any other credit enhancements.
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26.

Financial instruments (cont’d)
26.4 Credit risk (Cont’d)
Intercompany loans and advances (Cont’d)
Recognition and measurement of impairment loss
Generally, the Company considers loans and advances to subsidiaries have low credit risk. The Company assumes
that there is a significant increase in credit risk when a subsidiary’s financial position deteriorates significantly. As
the Company is able to determine the timing of payments of the subsidiaries’ loans and advances when they are
payable, the Company considers the loans and advances to be in default when the subsidiaries are not able to
pay when demanded. The Company considers a subsidiary’s loan or advance to be credit impaired when:
•
•

The subsidiary is unlikely to repay its loan or advance to the Company in full; or
The subsidiary is continuously loss making and is having a deficit shareholders’ fund.

	The Company determines the probability of default for these loans and advances individually using internal
information available.
As at the end of the reporting period, there was no indication that the financial positions of the subsidiaries had
deteriorated significantly. There was no subsidiary which is unlikely to repay its loan or advance to the Company
in full or is having a deficit shareholders’ fund.
26.5 Liquidity risk
	Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s
exposure to liquidity risk arises principally from its various payables, loans and borrowings.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group and the Company have net current liabilities of RM101,341,000 and
RM18,468,000 respectively and the Group’s net loss for the year was RM14,904,000. The preparation of the
financial statements on a going concern basis is dependent on the ability of the Group and the Company to
generate sufficient cash flows from their operations, utilisation of available credit facilities and obtaining continuous
financial support from their bankers and creditors to finance their operations, and achieving profitable operations.
The Group remains positive that it will be able to generate sufficient cash flows from its operations from its existing
projects and new projects being secured by the subsidiaries. In view of the foregoing, the Directors consider that
it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis and the Group and the Company
will be able to meet their liabilities as and when they fall due.
It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at
significantly different amounts.
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Carrying
Contractual
Contractual
amount
interest rate
cash flows
RM’000		
RM’000

Under 1
year
RM’000

1-2
years
RM’000

2-5
years
RM’000

More than
5 years
RM’000

281,531		

288,854

258,179

18,507

12,168

–

328,171

285,613

20,492

22,066

–
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313,377		

		

		

2020							
Non-derivative financial
liabilities							
Term loans
47,515
4.00% - 5.55%
52,562
23,137
17,453
11,972
–
Lease liabilities
2,315
5.84%
2,488
1,579
909
–
–
Other bank facilities
422
2.22% - 3.45%
486
145
145
196
–
Bankers’ acceptances
99,790
1.96% - 3.45%
100,287
100,287
–
–
–
Revolving credit
25,000
3.46%
25,865
25,865
–
–
–
Bank overdraft
9,806
6.90%
10,483
10,483
–
–
–
Trade and other payables
96,683
–
96,683
96,683
–
–
–

		
		
Group

	The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period
based on undiscounted contractual payments.

Maturity analysis

26.5 Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

2019 						
Non-derivative financial
liabilities							
Term loans
54,160
5.00% - 5.89%
65,757
25,177
18,748
21,832
–
Lease liabilities
2,922
2.48% - 5.84%
3,215
1,583
1,632
–
–
Other bank facilities
392
3.45%
458
112
112
234
–
Bankers’ acceptances
131,951
3.40% - 4.95%
132,785
132,785
–
–
–
Revolving credit
25,000
4.95%
26,237
26,237
–
–
–
Bank overdraft
9,599
8.00%
10,366
10,366
–
–
–
Trade and other payables
89,353
–
89,353
89,353
–
–
–

26.

Notes to the Financial Statements
(Cont’d)
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26.

Carrying
Contractual
Contractual
amount
interest rate
cash flows
RM’000		
RM’000

Under 1
year
RM’000

1-2
years
RM’000

2-5
years
RM’000

More than
5 years
RM’000

38,546		99,857

99,857

–

–

–

		

32,417		
111,121

111,121

–

–

–

							
2019 						
Non-derivative financial
liabilities							
Trade and other payables
32,417
0.00% - 3.15%
33,424
33,424
–
–
–
Financial guarantees
–
–
77,697
77,697
–
–
–

		

2020 						
Non-derivative financial
liabilities							
Trade and other payables
38,546
0.00% - 3.15%
39,742
39,742
–
–
–
Financial guarantees
–
–
60,115
60,115
–
–
–

		
		
Company

Maturity analysis (Cont’d)

26.5 Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (cont’d)

Notes to the Financial Statements
(Cont’d)

Notes to the Financial Statements
(Cont’d)

26.

Financial instruments (cont’d)
26.6 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates that will
affect the Group’s and the Company’s financial position or cash flows.
26.6.1 Currency risk
	The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency
other than the respective functional currencies of the Group entities. The currencies giving rise to this risk
are primarily U.S. Dollar (“USD”), Japanese Yen (“JPY”) and Renminbi (“RMB”).
Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
	The Group does not transact in any derivative instruments or hedge their currency exposure. However, the
Board of Directors keeps this policy under review and regularly monitors the exposures to avoid significant
adverse impact to the Group.
Exposure to foreign currency risk
	The Group’s exposure to foreign currency (a currency which is other than the functional currency of the
Group entities) risk, based on carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
				
USD
Group			RM’000

Denominated in
JPY
RM’000

RMB
RM’000

Balances recognised in the			
	  statement of financial position			
2020			
	Trade receivables			
1,454
	Trade payables			 (773)

–
(3,243)

–
(7,203)

Net exposure 			

681

(3,243)

(7,203)

2019			
	Trade receivables			
2,453
	Trade payables			
(8,815)

–
(1,680)

–
–

Net exposure 			 (6,362)

(1,680)

–

Currency risk sensitivity analysis
A 10% (2019: 10%) strengthening of the Ringgit Malaysia against the following currencies at the end
of the reporting period would have increased/(decreased) post-tax profit or loss by the amounts shown
below. This analysis is based on foreign currency exchange rate variances that the Group considered to
be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period. This analysis assumes that all other variables,
in particular interest rates, remained constant and ignores any impact of forecasted transactions.
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26.

Financial instruments (cont’d)
26.6 Market risk (Cont’d)
26.6.1 Currency risk (Cont’d)
Currency risk sensitivity analysis (Cont’d)

		
Profit or (loss)
					
2020
2019
Group			
RM’000
RM’000
	USD				
(52)
JPY				246
RMB				
547

484
128
–

A 10% (2019: 10%) weakening of the Ringgit Malaysia against the above currencies at the end of the
reporting period would have had equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown
above, on the basis that all other variables remained constant.
26.6.2 Interest rate risk
	The Group’s and the Company’s fixed rate financial assets and borrowings are exposed to a risk of change
in their fair values due to changes in interest rates. The Group’s variable rate borrowings are exposed to
a risk of change in cash flows due to changes in interest rates. Short term receivables and payables are
not significantly exposed to interest rate risk.
Risk management objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk
In managing interest rate risk, the Group and the Company maintain a balanced portfolio of fixed and
floating rate instruments. All interest rate exposures are monitored and managed by the Group and the
Company on a regular basis.
Exposure to interest rate risk
	The interest rate profile of the Group’s and the Company’s significant interest-bearing financial instruments,
based on carrying amounts as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Group
		2020
		RM’000

2019
RM’000

Company
2020
RM’000

2019
RM’000

Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets		 2,575
Financial liabilities		(122,451)

3,945
(152,742)

19,695
(37,976)

12,014
(31,970)

			(119,876)

(148,797)

(18,281)

(19,956)

							
Floating rate instruments
Financial liabilities		
(62,397)
(71,282)
–
–
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26.

Financial instruments (cont’d)
26.6 Market risk (Cont’d)
26.6.2 Interest rate risk (Cont’d)
Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
	The Group and the Company do not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the end of the reporting period would not
affect profit or loss.
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A change of 100 basis points (“bp”) (2019: 100 bp) in interest rates at the end of the reporting period would
have increased/(decreased) post-tax profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes
that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remained constant.

Profit or (loss)
2020		2019
			
100 bp
100 bp
100 bp
100 bp
			 increase
decrease
increase
decrease
Group		RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

		

Floating rate instruments						
Cash flow sensitivity (net)		(474)
474
(542)
542
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26.

Fair value of financial instruments
carried at fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Fair value of financial instruments
not carried at fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Total
fair Carrying
value amount
RM’000 RM’000

2019										
Financial liabilities										
Term loans
–
–
–
–
–
– (51,472) (51,472) (51,472) (54,160)

2020										
Financial liabilities										
Term loans
–
–
–
–
–
– (45,518) (45,518) (45,518) (47,515)

		
		
		
Group

	The table below analyses financial instruments at fair value.

	The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, short term receivables and payables and short term borrowings reasonably
approximate their fair values due to the relatively short term nature of these financial instruments.

26.7 Fair value information

Financial instruments (cont’d)

Notes to the Financial Statements
(Cont’d)

Notes to the Financial Statements
(Cont’d)

26.

Financial instruments (cont’d)
26.7 Fair value information (Cont’d)
Transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 fair values
	There has been no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 fair values during the financial year (2019: No transfer in
either directions).
Level 3 fair value
	Level 3 fair value is estimated using unobservable inputs for the financial assets and liabilities.
	The valuation technique in determining the fair values disclosed in Level 3 for the financial instruments not carried
at fair value is discounted cash flows, using a rate based on the current market rate of borrowing of the respective
Group entities at the reporting date.

27.

Capital management

	The Group’s objective when managing capital is to maintain a strong capital base and safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development
of the business. The Directors monitor and are determined to maintain an optimal debt-to-equity ratio that complies with
debt covenants and regulatory requirements.
During 2020, the Group’s strategy, which remain unchanged from 2019, was to maintain the debt-to-equity ratio below
1.5. The debt-to-equity ratios at 31 December 2020 and at 31 December 2019 were as follows:
		Group
					2020
					RM’000
Total loans and borrowings (Note 15)				
Total lease liabilities				
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 13)				
Less: Other investments (Note 12)				

2019
RM’000

182,533
2,315
(29,711)
–

221,102
2,922
(24,415)
(1,428)

Net debt				155,137

198,181

				
Total equity				247,296

262,312

				
Debt-to-equity ratio				0.63

0.76

	There was no change in the Group’s approach to capital management during the financial year.
	The Group is also required to maintain certain debt-to-equity ratio to comply with debt covenants, failing which, an event
of default may be triggered. The Group has not breached these covenants.
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28.

Capital commitments

		Group
					2020
					RM’000
Capital expenditure commitments			
Plant and equipment			
Contracted but not provided for				

29.

3,447

2019
RM’000

2,378

Related parties
Identity of related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the Group if the Group or the
Company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control or jointly control the party or exercise significant influence over
the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group or the Company and the party
are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.
Related parties also include key management personnel defined as those persons having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group either directly or indirectly and entity that provides key
management personnel services to the Group. The key management personnel include all the Directors of the Group
and certain members of senior management of the Group.

	The Group and the Company have related party relationship with its subsidiaries, joint venture, affiliated companies and
key management personnel.
Significant related party transactions
	The significant related party transactions of the Group and the Company (other than key management personnel
compensations as disclosed in Note 23) are as follows:
		
Amounts transacted
		
for the year ended
					2020
2019
Group				RM’000
RM’000

122

Affiliated companies in which the controlling
shareholders and Directors have interests			
Purchase of goods				
(38,331)
Rental receivable				1,166

(35,858)
1,406

			
Joint venture			
Sale of goods				

47,792
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29.

Related parties (Cont’d)
Significant related party transactions (Cont’d)

		
Amounts transacted
		
for the year ended
					2020
2019
Company				RM’000
RM’000
Subsidiaries			
Rental receivable				1,118
Management fees receivable				
526
Interest receivable				429
Interest payable				
(543)

1,118
625
384
(698)

			
Affiliated companies in which the controlling
shareholders and Directors have interests			
Rental receivable				
869

1,109

Related party transactions have been entered into in the normal course of business under negotiated basis.
	The net balance outstanding arising from the above transactions have been disclosed in Notes 11 and 18. All the
outstanding balances are expected to be settled in cash by the related parties.
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Statement by
Directors

pursuant to Section 251(2) of the Companies Act 2016
In the opinion of the Directors, the financial statements set out on pages 51 to 123 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016
in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as of 31 December
2020 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

...............................................................................
Hamidon Bin Abdullah
Director

...............................................................................
Aidan Hamidon
Director

Shah Alam, Malaysia
Date: 29 March 2021

Statutory
Declaration

pursuant to Section 251(1)(b) of the Companies Act 2016
I, Hamidon Bin Abdullah, the Director primarily responsible for the financial management of EP Manufacturing Bhd, do solemnly
and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 51 to 123 are, to the best of my knowledge and belief,
correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the declaration to be true, and by virtue of the Statutory
Declarations Act 1960.
Subscribed and solemnly declared by the abovenamed Hamidon Bin Abdullah, NRIC: 530129-01-6037, at Petaling Jaya in
the State of Selangor on 29 March 2021.

...............................................................................
Hamidon Bin Abdullah
Before me:

Commissioner for Oath
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To The Members Of EP Manufacturing Bhd
(Registration Number 199601017765 (390116-T))
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of EP Manufacturing Bhd, which comprise the statements of financial position as at
31 December 2020 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 51 to 123.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of
the Company as at 31 December 2020, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements
of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our auditors’ report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities
We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and
Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (“IESBA Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
i)

Going Concern
Refer to Note 1(b) – Basis of measurement.
The key audit matter
As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s and the Company’s current liabilities exceeded their current assets by RM101,341,000
and RM18,468,000 respectively and the Group’s net loss for the year was RM14,904,000. The preparation of the financial
statements on a going concern basis is dependent on the ability of the Group and of the Company to generate sufficient
cash flows from their operations, utilisation of available credit facilities and obtaining continuous financial support from
their bankers and creditors to finance their operations, and achieving profitable operations.

	The assessment on the ability of the Group and of the Company to generate sufficient cash flows to meet their current
liabilities is a key audit matter as it involved consideration of future events which are uncertain and required significant
judgements.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of EP Manufacturing Bhd
(Registration Number 199601017765 (390116-T)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
(Cont’d)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)
i)

Going Concern (Cont’d)
Refer to Note 1(b) – Basis of measurement. (Cont’d)
How the matter was addressed in our audit

	Our audit procedures included, amongst others, reviewing the budget operating cash flows of the Group and of the
Company for the financial year ending 31 December 2021, including the appropriateness of key assumptions made to
ascertain that the Group and the Company will have sufficient cash flows to meet their obligations as and when they fall
due.
We assessed management’s plans for future actions to address the net current liabilities position.
We assessed the timing of the loan repayments of the Group and of the Company and considered whether there was
any breach of loan covenants and availability of credit facilities to the Group and the Company.
We also considered the adequacy of disclosures in the financial statements in relation to the going concern basis of
preparation.
ii)

Valuation of Goodwill on consolidation
Refer to Note 6 – Goodwill on consolidation.
The key audit matter

	The Group is required to annually test the amount of goodwill for impairment. The goodwill on consolidation amounted to
RM84,435,000 as of 31 December 2020. The Group estimates the recoverable amount of goodwill based on discounted
future cash flows using estimates of profit projections, including sales growth rate and gross profit margins for the next
5 years, and discount rate for operating units which the goodwill is allocated to.
	There is a risk that the carrying value of this goodwill balance may not be recovered from future cash flows which may be
affected by future market or economic conditions. Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting and discounting
future cash flows, this is one of the key judgemental areas that our audit is concentrated on.
How the matter was addressed in our audit
	Our audit procedures included, amongst others, obtaining the management’s impairment assessment based on the
discounted cash flow projections of the operating units which the goodwill is allocated to. We evaluated the appropriateness
of the key assumptions used, in particular those relating to revenue growth, gross profit margins, the discount rate and
terminal growth rate applied to the cash flows in the model.
We assessed the key assumptions used for the cash flow projections, with reference to internally and externally derived
sources and taking into account the Group’s historical forecasting accuracy.
A range of sensitivities were performed across the different elements of the impairment model in order to understand
which judgements and assumptions were most sensitive in achieving the management’s impairment assessment.
We considered the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures in the financial statements in respect of the key assumptions
that reflect the risks inherent in the valuation of goodwill on consolidation.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of EP Manufacturing Bhd
(Registration Number 199601017765 (390116-T)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
(Cont’d)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)
iii)

Recoverability of trade receivables
Refer to Note 11 – Trade and other receivables.
The key audit matter
As the automotive sector faces a number of challenges and with the significant trade receivables balance of RM60,239,000
as at 31 December 2020, the determination whether trade receivables are collectible involves the Group’s judgements.
We focused on this area due to the degree of judgement involved in the estimation of recoverability of the amounts owing
from trade receivables.
How the matter was addressed in our audit

	Our audit procedures included testing the Group’s credit control procedures, including the controls around extending
credit and reviewing the payment history and financial information pertaining to the customers.
We performed detailed testing on the account receivables ageing to ascertain the underlying accuracy of the information
used in assessing the adequacy of impairment loss of trade receivables. We also discussed with the management and
assessed the historical trading experience and collection trends of these customers.
We also reviewed the post year-end cash collections against year-end trade receivables and investigated the
significant individual overdue balances by reference to recent history of recoveries on these balances and reviewed the
correspondences with the customers.
We evaluated the reasonableness of the management’s key judgements and estimates made in accordance with MFRS
9, including selection of methods, models, assumptions and data sources.
iv)

Valuation of inventories
Refer to Note 10 – Inventories.
The key audit matter

	The Group has significant inventory balance of RM43,624,000 as at 31 December 2020. The Group produces finished
products in batches which may go beyond the required quantities to fulfil an order. As a result, the excess inventories
produced may be slow moving until the next order for the similar product is fulfilled.
Allowance is made against inventory for estimated losses related to slow moving or obsolete inventory. The valuation of
inventories is a key audit matter because of the judgement involved in assessing the level of allowance required.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of EP Manufacturing Bhd
(Registration Number 199601017765 (390116-T)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
(Cont’d)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)
iv)

Valuation of inventories (Cont’d)
Refer to Note 10 – Inventories. (Cont’d)
How the matter was addressed in our audit

	Our audit procedures in this area included, amongst others, testing the design and effectiveness of controls over identifying
slow moving inventories and obtaining an understanding of the Group’s process for measuring the amount of write down
required. These controls are also designed to identify product lines where current sales prices do not exceed cost.
We assessed the Group’s provision for those product lines identified as slow moving, or potentially slow moving, by
relying on the inventory ageing maintained by the Group. We also tested the accuracy of the inventory ageing used for
this purpose.
We tested samples of inventories to sales subsequent to the year end and ascertained that they were sold above their
carrying amount.
v)

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and recoverability of receivables from subsidiaries (Company level)
Refer to Note 7 – Investment in subsidiaries and Note 11 – Trade and other receivables.
The key audit matter

	The Company has investment in subsidiaries of RM210,429,000 and amount owing from subsidiaries of RM19,723,000
as at 31 December 2020. Given the nature of the business and challenges faced by the automotive sector, the investment
in subsidiaries may be subject to impairment loss and receivables from subsidiaries may be doubtful.
How the matter was addressed in our audit
	Our audit procedures included, amongst others, reviewing the management’s assessment on the appropriateness of the
carrying amounts of investment in subsidiaries for investments with indication of impairment, including the appropriateness
of business model, underlying data and assumptions used in the cash flow projections.
We reviewed the management’s assessment on the recoverability of receivables from subsidiaries to ascertain if any
impairment is required on the balance with subsidiaries and evaluated the reasonableness of management’s key
judgements and estimates made in accordance with MFRS 9 in regards to impairment testing, including selection of
methods, models, assumptions and data sources.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Directors’ Report and Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control but does not include the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company and our auditors’ report thereon, which we obtained prior to the date of this
auditors’ report, and the remaining parts of the annual report, which are expected to be made available to us after that date.
Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and we do not
and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of EP Manufacturing Bhd
(Registration Number 199601017765 (390116-T)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
(Cont’d)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon (Cont’d)
In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of
this auditors’ report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
When we read the remaining parts of the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to the Directors of the Company and take appropriate actions in accordance with approved
standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing.
Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements
The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the
Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing the ability
of the Group and of the Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the
Group and of the Company.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the Directors.
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to the Members of EP Manufacturing Bhd
(Registration Number 199601017765 (390116-T)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
(Cont’d)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
•

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the ability of the Group or of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of
the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group or the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view.

•

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our auditors’ report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiaries of which we have
not acted as auditors are disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of EP Manufacturing Bhd
(Registration Number 199601017765 (390116-T)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
(Cont’d)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
Other Matter
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the Companies Act
2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

KPMG PLT
(LLP0010081-LCA & AF 0758)
Chartered Accountants

Ong Beng Seng
Approval Number: 02981/05/2022 J
Chartered Accountant

Petaling Jaya, Malaysia
Date: 29 March 2021
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Analysis of
Shareholdings
as at 31 March 2021
Issued Shares
Class of Shares
Voting Rights

:
165,960,000 Ordinary Shares (Inclusive of 7,958,800 treasury shares)
:	Ordinary shares
:	One vote per ordinary share

		
Size of Shareholdings		

No. of
Shareholders

% of
Shareholders

No. of
Shares

% of Issued
Share Capital

Less than 100 		
100 to 1,000 		
1,001 to 10,000 		
10,001 to 100,000 		
100,001 to less than 5% of issued shares 		
5% and above of issued shares		

22
618
889
334
67
3

1.14
31.97
45.99
17.28
3.47
0.15

865
553,831
4,257,289
10,706,050
99,035,099
51,406,866

0.00
0.33
2.57
6.45
59.67
30.98

TOTAL		 1,933

100.00

165,960,000

100.00

THIRTY (30) LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
No. Name

No. of Shares

% of Shares

1

Mutual Concept Sdn Bhd

29,006,866

17.48

2

HLB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Mutual Concept Sdn Bhd

11,400,000

6.87

3

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Mutual Concept Sdn Bhd

11,000,000

6.63

4

CGS-CIMB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Mutual Concept Sdn Bhd

7,650,000

4.61

5

Maybank Securities Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Mohamed Bin Hashim

7,476,865

4.51

6

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Tan Seok Hien

6,995,000

4.21

7

EP Manufacturing Bhd
Share Buy Back Account

6,971,100

4.20

8

Maybank Securities Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Shahrul Azhan Bin Samsudin @ Shamsuddin

6,401,700

3.86

9

RHB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Aturan Omega Sdn Bhd

5,891,300

3.55

10

Symphony Vista Sdn Bhd

5,517,800

3.32

11

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Hamidon Bin Abdullah

4,800,000

2.89

12

EB Nominees (Tempatan) Sendirian Berhad
Pledged Securities Account for Mohd Nizam Bin Mohamed

4,716,600

2.84

13

CGS-CIMB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Hamidon Bin Abdullah

4,110,000

2.48

14

Michelle Cheah Min Tze

4,005,500

2.41

15

Abu Sahid Bin Mohamed

3,980,400

2.40

16

EP Properties (M) Sdn Bhd

3,465,000

2.09
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Analysis of Shareholdings
as at 31 March 2021
(Cont’d)
THIRTY (30) LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS (cont’d)
No. Name

No. of Shares

% of Shares

17

Chew Soo Ton

3,341,900

2.01

18

HLB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Abu Sahid Bin Mohamed

2,707,700

1.63

19

Mutual Concept Sdn Bhd

2,596,967

1.56

20

Lee Chee Beng

2,269,100

1.37

21

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Mohd Fuad Bin A. Manaf

1,273,800

0.77

22

Dr Linden Hamidon

1,200,000

0.72

23

EP Manufacturing Bhd
Share Buy Back Account

987,700

0.60

24

Lim Khuan Eng

940,000

0.57

25

Tan Jui Hong

641,500

0.39

26

Leau Kim Pun @ Liau Kim Pun

614,000

0.37

27

Tan Pei Leng

603,400

0.36

28

Goh Kim Cheok

600,000

0.36

29

Tan Teck Peng

568,000

0.34

30

Tan Teoh Aik
TOTAL

560,000

0.34

142,292,198

85.74

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
Direct
Name
Hamidon Bin Abdullah
Mutual Concept Sdn Bhd

No. of Shares

Indirect
%

No. of Shares

%

9,047,133

5.73

65,218,833*

41.28

61,753,833

39.08

–

–

Note :
*
Deemed interest by virtue of his shareholdings in Mutual Concept Sdn Bhd and EP Properties (M) Sdn Bhd pursuant to
Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016.

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS
Direct
Name
Hamidon Bin Abdullah
Shaari Bin Haron
Dr Linden Hamidon

Indirect

No. of Shares

%

No. of Shares

%

9,047,133

5.73

65,218,833*

41.28

20,000

0.01

–

–

1,329,384

0.84

–

–

Note :
*
Deemed interest by virtue of his shareholdings in Mutual Concept Sdn Bhd and EP Properties (M) Sdn Bhd pursuant to
Section 8 of the Companies Act 2016.
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Properties Held
by the Group

Location/Address

Description

Tenure

Land
Area
sq. m.

Gross
Floor
Area
sq. m.

Net Book
Value
as at
31.12.2020
RM

Age of
Building
Years

Date of Last
Revaluation

1.

Lot No. 72 & 73
Hicom Glenmarie Industrial Park
Phase 2A, Mukim of Damansara
Daerah Klang
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Land with factory,
stores and office

Freehold

13,859

15,480

39,589,122

26

21/3/2017

2.

G.M. No. 4776, Lot No. 1401
Mukim of Ulu Yam
District of Ulu Selangor
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Industrial land
with factory
buildings

Freehold

10,117

4,645

9,080,000

13

21/3/2017

3.

G.M. No. 5061, Lot No. 1410
Mukim of Ulu Yam
District of Ulu Selangor
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Industrial land
with factory,
stores and office

Freehold

13,785

5,808

14,647,681

17

21/3/2017

4.

G.M. No. 5062, Lot No. 1412
Mukim of Ulu Yam
District of Ulu Selangor
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Industrial land
(vacant)

Freehold

13,405

–

3,240,677

–

21/3/2017

5.

G.M. No. 4974, Lot No. 1403
Batu 29, Jalan Ipoh
44300 Batang Kali
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Industrial land
with car park

Freehold

8,979

–

2,217,263

–

21/3/2017

6.

G.M. No. 4973, Lot No. 1406
Batu 29, Jalan Ipoh
44300 Batang Kali
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Industrial land
with factory,
office and guard
house

Freehold

11,002

7,834

12,185,172

24

21/3/2017

7.

G.M. No. 4956, Lot No. 1409
Batu 29, Jalan Ipoh
44300 Batang Kali
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Industrial land
with stores and
office

Freehold

13,786

11,952

23,527,117

16

21/3/2017

8.

G.M. No. 5073, Lot No. 1404
Mukim of Ulu Yam
District of Hulu Selangor
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Industrial land with
car park and water
treatment plant

Freehold

9,485

–

2,000,000

–

21/3/2017

9.

G.M. No. 5072, Lot No. 1407
Mukim of Ulu Yam
District of Hulu Selangor
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Industrial land
with factory, lab,
canteen, locker
room and
guard house

Freehold

11,508

11,808

19,301,633

14

21/3/2017

10.

Geran 31609, Lot No. 1652
Mukim Sungei Petai
Daerah Alor Gajah, Melaka

Industrial land
with stores and
office

Freehold

15,941

–

4,839,953

1

1/11/2013

11.

PT Nos. 2227, 2228, 2231,
2232, 2233, 2234 and 2235
Mukim Pegoh
Daerah Alor Gajah, Melaka

Industrial land
(vacant)

Freehold

128,204

–

35,582,518

–

22/9/2015

12.

Lot 210 & 211, PT 2229 & 2230
Jalan Hicom Pegoh 7
Kawasan Perindustrian
Hicom Pegoh
78000 Alor Gajah, Melaka

Industrial land
with factory,
stores and office

Freehold

35,491

16,727

37,215,665

4

22/9/2015
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Notice of
Annual General Meeting
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Twenty-Fifth (25th) Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of EP Manufacturing Bhd (“EPMB”
or “the Company”) will be held on fully virtual and entirely via remote participation and voting at the Broadcast Venue at
Conference Room, No. 8 & 10, Jalan Jurutera U1/23, Seksyen U1, Kawasan Perindustrian Hicom Glenmarie, 40150 Shah Alam,
Selangor on Friday, 28 May 2021 at 3.00 p.m. for the purpose of transacting the following businesses:-

AGENDA
AS ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.	To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2020
together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon.

(Explanatory
Note A)

2.	To approve the payment of Directors’ fees of up to RM450,000 from 29 May 2021 until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Resolution 1

3.	To re-elect the following Directors who retire in accordance with Article 105 of the Company’s
Constitution and, who being eligible, offer themselves for re-election:Resolution 2
Resolution 3
Resolution 4

(i)	Encik Shaari Bin Haron
(ii)
Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz Bin Hashim
(iii)	Tan Sri Datuk Hussin Bin Haji Ismail
4.	To re-appoint Messrs. KPMG PLT as Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors
to fix their remuneration.

Resolution 5

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions:
5.

Resolution 6

Retention of Encik Shaari Bin Haron as Independent Non-Executive Director
“THAT subject to the passing of Resolution 2, Encik Shaari Bin Haron who has served for a
cumulative terms of more than twelve (12) years be retained as Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting in accordance
with the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance.”

6.

Resolution 7

Retention of Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz Bin Hashim as Independent Non-Executive Director
“THAT subject to the passing of Resolution 3, Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz Bin Hashim who has served
for a cumulative terms of more than nine (9) years be retained as Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting in accordance
with the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance.”
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
(Cont’d)

7.

Authority to issue and allot shares pursuant to Section 75 and Section 76 of the Companies
Act 2016

Resolution 8

“THAT subject always to the Companies Act 2016 (“the Act”), the Constitution of the Company,
the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and the approvals of
relevant governmental/regulatory authorities, where such approval is required, the Directors be
and are hereby authorised and empowered pursuant to Section 75 and Section 76 of the Act,
to issue and allot shares in the Company at any time, and upon such terms and conditions and
for such purposes as the Directors may, in their absolute discretion, deem fit, provided that the
aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to this resolution does not exceed 20% of
the total number of issued shares of the Company for the time being and that the Directors be
and are hereby empowered to obtain approval for the listing of and quotation for the additional
shares so issued on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and that such authority shall continue
to be in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.”
8.

Proposed renewal of authority for the Company to purchase its own shares (“Proposed
Share Buy-Back”)
“THAT subject to the compliance with Section 127 of the Companies Act 2016, the provision
of the Constitution of the Company, the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) and the approvals of all relevant governmental/ regulatory
authorities, the Company be and is hereby authorised to buy back such number of ordinary
shares in the Company (“Proposed Share Buy-Back”) as may be determined by the Directors
of the Company from time to time through Bursa Securities upon such terms and conditions as
the Directors may deem fit, necessary and expedient in the interest of the Company, provided
that:
(a)

the aggregate number of ordinary shares which may be purchased and/or held by the
Company at any point of time pursuant to this Proposed Share Buy-Back shall not exceed
10% of the total number of issued shares of the Company;

(b)

the maximum funds to be allocated by the Company for the Proposed Share Buy-Back
shall not exceed the total retained profits of the Company for the financial year ended 31
December 2020; and

(c)

such authority shall commence upon passing of this resolution and continue to be effective
until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company or, upon
the expiration of the period within which the next AGM is required by law to be held or,
unless revoked or varied by resolution passed by the shareholders in a general meeting,
whichever is the earlier, but so as not to prejudice the completion of a purchase made
before the aforesaid expiry date.

AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to deal with the ordinary
shares bought back in their absolute discretion in all or any of the following manner:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

136

to cancel the shares so purchased;
to retain the shares so purchased as treasury shares (of which may be dealt with in
accordance with Section 127(7) of the Act);
retain part of the shares so purchased as treasury shares and cancel the remainder; or
in any other manner as may be permitted and prescribed by the Act, the Main Market Listing
Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and any other relevant authorities for
the time being in force.
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Resolution 9

Notice of Annual General Meeting
(Cont’d)

8.

Proposed renewal of authority for the Company to purchase its own shares (“Proposed
Share Buy-Back”) (Cont’d)
AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to take all such steps
as they may consider necessary and expedient to implement and to give effect to the Proposed
Share Buy-Back as may be allowed by the relevant governmental/regulatory authorities.”

9.

Proposed renewal of shareholders’ mandate for Recurrent Related Party Transactions of
a Revenue or Trading Nature (“Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate”)

Resolution 10

“THAT subject to the provisions of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad, the Company and its subsidiaries (“EPMB Group”) be and are hereby
authorised to enter into recurrent related party transactions from time to time involving the
interest of Directors, Major Shareholders or persons connected with Directors and/or Major
Shareholders of the EPMB Group (“Related Parties”) as stated in Section 2.4 of Part B of the
Circular to Shareholders dated 28 April 2021 subject to the followings:i)

the transactions are of a revenue or trading nature which are necessary for day to day
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries, carried out in the ordinary course of
business on normal commercial terms which are not more favourable to the Related Parties
than those generally available to the public and are not to the detriment of the minority
shareholders.

ii)

disclosure is made in the annual report of the aggregate value of transactions conducted
during the financial year pursuant to the Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate.

AND THAT such authority shall continue to be in force until:(a)

the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company at which
time the said authority will lapse unless by a resolution passed at a general meeting of
the Company, the authority is renewed; or

(b)

the expiration of the period within which the next AGM is required to be held pursuant
to Section 340(2) of the Companies Act 2016 (the “Act”) (but shall not extend to such
extension as may be allowed pursuant to Section 340(4) of the Act); or

(c)

revoked or varied by resolution passed by the shareholders in a general meeting;

whichever is the earlier.
AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to complete and take
all such steps and do all acts and things in such manner as they may consider necessary and
expedient to give effect to the Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate.”
10.	To transact any other business of which due notice shall have been given in accordance with
the Act and the Company’s Constitution.
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By Order of the Board

TEO WEI THENG (MAICSA 7056007)
SSM PC No.: 202008000790
Company Secretary
Selangor
28 April 2021

Notes:
1.

A member entitled to participate and vote at the meeting shall be entitled to appoint not more than two (2) persons as
his proxy to participate and vote in his stead. Where a member appoints two (2) proxies to participate the same meeting,
the member shall specify the proportions of his shareholdings to be represented by each proxy. A proxy may but need
not be a member of the Company.

2.

Where a member is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial
owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt
authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.
An exempt authorised nominee refers to an authorised nominee defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories)
Act 1991 (“SICDA”) which is exempted from compliance with the provisions of subsection 25A(1) of the SICDA.

3.	The instrument appointing a proxy, in the case of an individual, shall be signed by the appointer or his attorney duly
authorised in writing, and in the case of a corporation, shall be either given under the corporation’s seal or under the
hand of an officer or attorney of the corporation duly authorised.
4.	To be valid, the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the office of the Poll Administration, Mega
Corporate Services Sdn. Bhd. situated at Level 15-2, Bangunan Faber Imperial Court, Jalan Sultan Ismail, 50250 Kuala
Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan or submitted via email to agm-support.EPMB@megacorp.com.my, not less than 48 hours
before the time set for holding the Meeting or at any adjournment thereof.
5.	Only members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors as at 21 May 2021 shall be entitled to participate and
vote at the meeting or appoint proxy/proxies to participate and/or vote on his/her behalf.
6.	Pursuant to Paragraph 8.29A(1) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, all the
Resolutions set out in this Notice will be put to vote by poll.
7.	The 25th AGM will be conducted on fully virtual at the Broadcast Venue, the members are advised to refer to the
Administrative Guide on the registration and voting process for the Meeting.
8.	Explanatory Note A
	This Agenda item is meant for discussion only as it does not require shareholders’ approval under the provisions of
Section 340(1)(a) of the Companies Act 2016. As such, this item is not put forward for voting.
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9.	Explanatory notes on Special Businesses:i)	Proposed Retention of Encik Shaari Bin Haron (‘Encik Shaari”) and Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz Bin Hashim (“Dato’ Ikmal”)
as Independent Non-Executive Director
	Practice 4.2 of the MCCG provides that the tenure of an independent director does not exceed a cumulative term
limit of nine (9) years. Upon completion of the nine (9) years, an independent director may continue to serve on
the board as a non-independent director.
If the board intends to retain an independent director beyond nine (9) years, it should justify and seek annual
shareholders’ approval. If the board continues to retain the independent director after the twelfth year, the board
should seek annual shareholders’ approval through a two-tier voting process.
	The Board is recommending to the shareholders for Encik Shaari and Dato’ Ikmal who has served as Independent
Non-Executive Directors of the Company for a cumulative term of more than twelve (12) years and nine (9) years
respectively to continue to act as Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company. The Board recommends
that the approval for retention of Encik Shaari who has served as Independent Non-Executive Director for a
cumulative term of more than twelve (12) years be sought through a two-tier voting process for the continuing of
office.
	The Board through the Nomination Committee had assessed and endorsed that Encik Shaari and Dato’ Ikmal be
retained as Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company as they have continued to display high level of
integrity and are objective in their judgement and decision making in the best interest of the Company, shareholders
and stakeholders and are able to express unbiased views without any influence, the detailed justifications are as
set out in this Annual Report.
ii)

Authority to issue shares pursuant to Section 75 and Section 76 of the Companies Act 2016

	The Proposed Resolution 8 is the renewal of the general mandate obtained from the shareholders at the last AGM.
As at the date of this notice, the Company did not allot any share pursuant to the general mandate granted to the
Directors at the 24th Annual General Meeting held on 21 July 2020.
	This Resolution 8, if passed, will empower the Directors to allot and issue ordinary shares up to an amount not
exceeding 20% of the total number of issued shares of the Company for the time being for such purposes as the
Directors consider would be in the interest of the Company, based on the additional temporary relief measures
granted by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad to listed corporation via its letter dated 16 April 2020. The utilisation
of 20% general mandate is until 31 December 2021. After that, the 10% limit under Paragraph 6.03(1) of the MMLR
will be reinstated. This authority, unless revoked or varied by the Company at a general meeting, will expire at the
next AGM.
	The Company will make an announcement in respect of the purpose and utilisation of proceeds arising from such
issue.
	The authority will provide flexibility to the Company for any possible fund raising activities for future investment
projects or undertakings or for working capital purpose as the Directors may in their absolute discretion deem fit.
After having considered all aspect of the 20% General Mandate, the Board is of the opinion that the adoption of
the 20% General Mandate would be in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders, on the following
basis: (a)	The interest of the Company as well as its long term shareholders should be in congruence with the issue
of long term sustainability of the Company as only a business operation with healthy and sufficient working
capital could generate positive returns to the Company and its shareholders.
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(b)	The Company continues to consider strategic opportunities to broaden the earnings potential of the Company.
The additional fund raising flexibility through the 20% General Mandate will enable the Company, should it
be required to do so, to meet its funding requirements for potential business/asset acquisitions or new joint
venture arrangement and/or for working capital requirements expeditiously and efficiently, without burdening
the shareholders with a separate general meeting during this challenging period.
(c)	The 20% General Mandate will provide flexibility to the cash flow planning of the Company should the
Company requires additional funding for the execution of its future plans or the business contingency plans
to mitigate the financial impact due to the outbreak of Coronavirus disease (COVID-19) pandemic.
iii)	Proposed Share Buy-Back and Proposed Shareholders’ Mandate
For Resolutions 9 and 10, further information on the Proposed Share Buy-Back and Proposed Shareholders’
Mandate are set out in the Statement/Circular to Shareholders dated 28 April 2021 despatched together with this
Annual Report.

Statement Accompanying
Notice of 25th Annual General Meeting

(Pursuant to Paragraph 8.27(2) of the Main Market Listing Requirements
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad)
The details of the Directors who are standing for re-election as per Agenda 3 of the Notice of 25th Annual General Meeting are
set out in the Board of Director’s profile and Analysis of Shareholdings sections of this Annual Report.
Details of the general mandate to issue securities in the Company pursuant to Section 75 and 76 of the Companies Act 2016
are set out in Explanatory Note 9 of the Notice of AGM.
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EP MANUFACTURING BHD

CDS A/C No.
No of Shares held
Contact No.
Email address

Registration No.: 199601017765 (390116-T)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

PROXY FORM

I/We_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

(FULL NAME IN BLOCK AND I.C.NO./COMPANY NO.)

of___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

(ADDRESS)

being a member/members of EP MANUFACTURING BHD hereby appoint: Full Name (in Block)
(Proxy 1)

NRIC/Passport No.

Proportion of Shareholdings
No. of Shares

%

Address
Email Address
Mobile Phone No.

and / or *
Full Name (in Block)
(Proxy 2)

NRIC/Passport No.

Proportion of Shareholdings
No. of Shares

%

Address
Email Address
Mobile Phone No.

or failing him/her, the Chairman of the Meeting as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Twenty-Fifth (25th) Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on fully virtual and entirely via remote participation and voting at the Broadcast Venue at Conference
Room, No. 8 & 10, Jalan Jurutera U1/23, Seksyen U1, Kawasan Perindustrian Hicom Glenmarie, 40150 Shah Alam, Selangor on Friday,
28 May 2021 at 3.00 p.m. or at any adjournment thereof as indicated below:
RESOLUTION
1
To approve the payment of Directors’ fees
2
Re-election of Encik Shaari Bin Haron
3
Re-election of Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz Bin Hashim
4
Re-election of Tan Sri Datuk Hussin Bin Haji Ismail
5
Re-appointment of Auditors
6
Retention of Encik Shaari Bin Haron as Independent Non-Executive Director
7
Retention of Dato’ Ikmal Hijaz Bin Hashim as Independent Non-Executive Director
8
Approval for Directors to allot and issue shares
9
Renewal of Authority for Share Buy-Back
10 Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Related Party Transactions

For

Against

(Please indicate with an “X” in the spaces provided how you wish your vote to be cast. If no instruction as to voting is given, the proxy will vote or abstain from
voting at his/her discretion.)

Dated this ………..…… day of ……………..….. 2021
..........……………………………………………
Signature/ Common Seal of Shareholder(s)
Notes:
1.

A member entitled to participate and vote at the meeting shall be entitled to appoint not more than two (2) persons as his proxy to participate and vote in his stead. Where a member
appoints two (2) proxies to attend the same meeting, the member shall specify the proportions of his shareholdings to be represented by each proxy. A proxy may but need not be a
member of the Company.

2.

Where a member is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there
is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.
An exempt authorised nominee refers to an authorised nominee defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991 (“SICDA”) which is exempted from compliance
with the provisions of subsection 25A(1) of the SICDA.

3.	The instrument appointing a proxy, in the case of an individual, shall be signed by the appointer or his attorney duly authorised in writing, and in the case of a corporation, shall be
either given under the corporation’s seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney of the corporation duly authorised.

✄

4.	To be valid, the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the office of the Poll Administration, Mega Corporate Services Sdn. Bhd. situated at Level 15-2,
Bangunan Faber Imperial Court, Jalan Sultan Ismail, 50250 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekutuan or submitted via email to agm-support.EPMB@megacorp.com.my, not less than 48
hours before the time set for holding the Meeting or at any adjournment thereof.
5.	Only members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors as at 21 May 2021 shall be entitled to participate and vote at the meeting or appoint proxy/proxies to participate
and/or vote on his/her behalf.
6.	Pursuant to Paragraph 8.29A(1) of the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, all the Resolutions set out in this Notice will be put to vote by poll.
7.	The 25th AGM will be conducted on fully virtual at the Broadcast Venue, the members are advised to refer to the Administrative Guide on the registration and voting process for the
Meeting.

Fold this flap for sealing

Then fold here

AFFIX
STAMP

The Poll Administrator
EP MANUFACTURING BHD

Registration No.: 199601017765 (390116-T)

c/o Mega Corporate Services Sdn. Bhd.
Level 15-2, Bangunan Faber Imperial Court
Jalan Sultan Ismail
50250 Kuala Lumpur
Wilayah Persekutuan

1st fold here
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